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CEO Statement
ITHARRE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BREEE
For the
Year nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE H=
—E—+tF —E-RF
+=ZBA=+—-H8H +ZA=+—H
LEFE IENE A
Financial Performance (HK$'000) BERE(FER)
Revenue A 2,026,599 2,145,926
Gross profit E 7 188,950 217,463
Gross profit margin EFI=E 9.3% 10.1%
EBITDA (Note 1) o ST & I 8 AT R B (B EE) 204,520 261,023
Profit attributable to owners (S/NEIE PPN
of the parent Y 7] 37,713 90,152
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—Z—tHF —E-REF
+=B=+—-H +Z-A=+-—H
Financial Position (HK$'000) B MRR (FET)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEEEY 68,623 24,899
Goodwill (Note 2) 2 (Bt 52) 498,343 463,257
Intangible assets (Note 2) | B E (M sE2) 556,230 569,171
Profit guarantee (Note 2) i A 4R 78 (B 3E2) — 2,911
Total assets BEE 2,509,552 2,594,815
Liability component of AMREFZBEES
convertible bonds (Note 2) (BT 5E2) 387,665 359,818
Promissory notes (Note 2) A g (M EE2) 473,918 453,938
Total liabilities meE 1,806,938 2,043,443
Net assets BEFE 702,614 551,372
Current ratio (Note 3) B L = (B 5E3) 1.1 1.3
Gearing ratio (Note 4) &R R (B 5%4) 119.5% 146.7%
Return on equity (Note 5) % 7 3] 8 &= (BT 5%5) 5.4% 16.4%
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Notes:

Profit before income tax, depreciation and amortisation, interest
income, finance costs.

Goodwill, intangible assets and profit guarantee were derived
from the automotive engines business while the liability portion of
convertible bonds and promissory notes were issued in prior years.

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total of interest-bearing
borrowings, liability component of convertible bonds and promissory
notes less cash and cash equivalent by the total equity as at the
end of the reporting period and multiplied by 100%.

The calculation of return on equity is based on the profit attributable
to owners of the parent during the period divided by the ending
equity attributable to owners of the parent as at the end of the
reporting period and multiplied by 100%.
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CEO Statement
ITHARRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Bisu Technology Group International Limited (the “Company”), |
am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$2,026.6 million (nine
months ended 31 December 2016: approximately HK$2,145.9
million). Profit for the vyear attributable to shareholders and
EBITDA was approximately HK$37.7 million and HK$204.5 million
respectively (nine months ended 31 December 2016: profit of
approximately HK$90.2 million and HK$261.0 million). The decrease
in business performance was mainly due to the changes in the
preferential vehicle tax policies and market competition, the
revenue and gains of the Group’s automobiles business decreased.

AUTOMOTIVE ENGINES BUSINESS

The automobile industry showed a moderate overall growth in
2017. Except for SUV which has showed continued growth, the
performance of all other types of passenger vehicles recorded
a decline. According to the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers, the reduction in purchase tax cut of small engine
vehicles in 2017 lead to more early bird purchases in 2016,
resulting in a bigger production and sale base in 2016. In addition,
the adjustment of new energy vehicle policy also delayed some
potential purchases in 2017. The demand for certain types of
vehicles produced by the Group’s customers decreased during the
year, and this in turn affected the sales of some of the traditional
engines of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the revenue of the Automotive Engines Business was approximately
HK$1,478.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
16.5% as compared to the nine months ended 31 December 2016.

The segment results of the Automotive Engines Business reached
approximately HK$200.4 million (excluding the amortization
of intangible assets and deferred tax credit amounting to
approximately HK$61.8 million and approximately HK$9.3 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 27.2% as compared to
the nine months ended 31 December 2016.
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CIVIL ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION

BUSINESS

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had 18 significant projects in
progress. Two of them were building construction and maintenance
projects while the remaining were civil engineering construction
projects. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue
of Group's civil engineering works and building construction
and maintenance works were approximately HK$548.3 million,
representing an increase of 45.8% as compared to the nine
months ended 31 December 2016. The overall gross profit margin
of this segment was 3.1% for the year ended 31 December 2017,
representing an increase of approximately 206%.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, we expect the business environment of our
Automotive Engines Business remains challenging in the year 2018
due to keen competition. In order to maintain our competitiveness,
the Group will continuously focus on research and development
to develop automotive engines with high quality and advanced
features to enhance market penetration and brand recognition.

The Group will continue to explore cooperation opportunities
with the existing customers and other business partners in the
future to cope with the ever-changing automobile industry trend.
In particular, the Group will continue to actively identify potential
merger and acquisition opportunities and assess possibilities of
forming joint ventures with other potential partners to expand its
product portfolio and strengthen its core competitiveness.

In recent years, the construction industry is confronted with
fierce market competition due to the challenges such as rising
costs and shortage of manpower. As stated in the Financial
Budget for the fiscal year from 2018 to 2019, the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region government will continue to devote
resources to infrastructure projects.
the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the construction
industry in Hong Kong. Looking forward, the Group will adopt
a prudent approach when bidding new construction projects. At
the same time, the Group will also continue to control the overall
construction costs to maintain its competitiveness.

Despite the challenges,
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CEO Statement
ITHARRE

APPRECIATION IS Hit

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this &% AAZHEHUHESRKRESSRERE
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to BB R 2 E T REH R B K RO H
our management team and staff for their dedication commitment, & & RO SRIZAF T A - IR AP FT
as well as all of our customers, suppliers, shareholders, business BAEF - #HER « RE EEBEHELAE
partners and associates for their support and encouragement to EHUAREBNEHIZHELEE -

the Group.

Wong Hin Shek 7T 48 %
Chief Executive Officer THEE
Hong Kong, 21 March 2018 EB - N\F=ZHA=+—H
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Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand
EXAFHEEAOBE

TEREABEFANRZE—FEFLZA=+—
BFABIATIREMEERBNEKRTHE

The following table summarises our significant contracts on

hand for the civil engineering and construction business as at

31 December 2017:

Particulars of the contract

B4

Contract sum

BRFHE EHNEE
HK$ million
BEATT
Waterworks *BIR
Replacement and rehabilitation of water mains 5 # & & 18 /K & 5t 8| 4 B E 15 — 635
stage 4 phase 1 — Mains in West Kowloon,  #a/l8e * EHF N ZEKETIR13/
Kwai Tsing and Tsuen Wan (13/WSD/10) WSD/10)
Replacement and rehabilitation of water mains 5 # K& 1E/KE 5+ & F 4B R B18 — 358
stage 4 phase 1 — Major mains in Eastern TR £ Z/KEILIR(0/WSD/11)
New Territories (10/WSD/11)
Replacement and rehabilitation of water mains 5 # & & 18 /KE &+ 8| F 4B L B18f — 467
stage 4 phase 1 — Remaining mains on BERGTEEKEIESLB/WSD/12)
Hong Kong Island (3/WSD/12)
Roads and drainage works ERRREBIRE
Provision of external cable construction works et FIINEEER L EMMEBRE
and outside telecommunications plant (Note 1)
maintenance services (B 5E1)
Advance Civil Engineering Works for Public A HAFEEFE(ZCE—RHFE_T— 50
Housing Development Projects Batch 5 +F)AI LRI
(2015 = 2017)
Advance Civil Engineering Works for Public FOHAREEFAE(CE-—RFE_ZT— 38
Housing Development Projects Batch 6 NE)RIEA EARITHE
(2016 — 2018)
Provision of Barrier-free Access Facilities for ~ ABEREEYIEHERRBER B — 203
Highway Structures — Phase 3 Contract 8 F=HENNHEH
Provision of Barrier-free Access Facilities for Z%}EE%T% EYRHEEERBERE — 173
Highway Structures — Phase 3 Contract 9 E=ZHENNELN (Note 2)
(KMt 5£2)
Foundation, Site Formation, Road and mEZElL—ftR(E— FK 48
Drainage for Public Rental Housing FRERNEERSHME -
Development at Queen’s Hill Site 1, MEBRTE BRRIREBIE
Fanling, Phases 1, 2 and 5
Landslip preventive and remedial works to B ILEHERBURF K BRHIE
slopes
Upgrading/Improvement works to Lands MHAELBLRRAKER HEIR 158
Department slopes in the Northern Regions
Annual Report 2017 = Z — +F F 7} 9



Summary of Significant Contracts on Hand
EXRFHEEABE

Particulars of the contract Contract sum
EHHER EHEHE
HK$ million
BEATT
Utilities civil engineering works AAREEIARIRE
Term contract for provision of civil engineering 2 1t & =1 48 4% M 45 B8 =% je 2
works for the telecommunication networks TARIBFEHELD (Note 1)
and associated facilities (B ED
Provision of integrated field works for field RENTCRE G EBEBERRE
services in NTC region (Note 1)
(Bt 7% 1)
Provision of Integrated Field Works for Field — FKLA & KLBE I 47 & 48 48 B % AR 75
Services in KLA & KLB regions (Note 1)
(B EED)
Provision of civil works for cable circuit REESPAREE TR EEFKN 42

improvement for certain areas of the Central = N
and Western District of the Hong Kong
Island

Construction and Maintenance of Trenching/ & - 65§l }JH MYSREMBESHG

Cable Laying and Contractual Works in the 31,/ EEHEAMEERRELESHIRE (Note 1)
Areas of Hong Kong, Ap Lei Chau, Lamma (Bt &%)
Island and any Outlying Island

Rehabilitation of Underground Fire Hydrant MREEHARFEIBBERE T IEN 20
Pipes at Gas Turbine and Stage 3 Areas EEEIR

Building construction and maintenance BEFEENREIR
works

New Entrances and Associated Modification — ZEEFmEBFHAFTEAO TR 80
Works in Tsuen Wan West

District Term Contract for Maintenance, A - dtE - 2 EI&&@EE%% W& —
Improvement and Vacant Flat Refurbishment for NZEEBEUBMAT IEMNSETHELG) (Note 1)
Tai Po, North, Shatin and Sai Kung Region (4) :E t/_f NFEE (B sE1)
2017/2019

Note 1: No contract sum provided in the contracts due to the nature of  BifsE1: ERBEEAL!
the relevant contracts. HE

Note 2: Project with a contract sum of HK$340 million being undertaken K32 : & %)% %8/45340,000,000/8 T 2 EE i

by EXCEL-LANON Joint Venture, an unincorporated company in WIEBHRRERD — = HEED
which 51% interest is attributable to the Group. XEB ES1%EmBAEEHES -

10 Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt R EI B EEE R A



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group has engaged in two
business segments, which are (i) development production and sale
of automotive engines (the “Automotive Engines Business”); and (ii)
Civil engineering works and building construction and maintenance
works (the “Civil Engineering and Construction Business”).

The Group has record a decline both in terms of revenue and
profit in 2017. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recorded a consolidated revenue of approximately HK$2,026.6
million (nine months ended 31 December 2016: approximately
HK$2,145.9 million). Profit for the year attributable to shareholders
was approximately HK$37.7 million (nine months ended
31 December 2016: profit of approximately HK$90.2 million). The
decrease in business performance was mainly due to the changes
in the preferential vehicle tax policies and market competition.

Gross profit decreased to approximately HK$189.0 million (nine
months ended 31 December 2016: approximately HK$217.5 million)
with the gross profit ratio at approximately 9.3%. The decrease in
gross profit ratio derived from the Automotive Engines Business was
the result of decline in sales orders which affected the economy
of scale.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2017 were approximately HK$18.9 cents and
HK$16.6 cents respectively (nine months ended 31 December
2016: basic and diluted profit per share of approximately HK$45.1
cents and HK$27.8 cents).

Automotive Engines Business

In 2017, the national economic growth rate remained within a
reasonable range, with strong signs showing continued stability and
progress in the economy as reflected in steady growth, increased
income, and optimized structure. The stability, coordination and
sustainability in economic development have been improved.
According to the data released by the National Bureau of Statistics,
in the first three quarters of 2017, the growth rate of GDP in
China rose slightly by 0.2% as compared with that of the same
period in 2016, up by 6.9% year-on-year which was better than
the full-year economic growth target of 6.5% set in the Report
on the Work of the Government. China has been constantly
adjusting and optimizing its economic structure, the driver of
economic development has been in progressive transformation,
and consumption has become the main driving force of economic
growth and further supported the economic growth.

BEEEFNWE DM

5 RE& M E R
REBEER ARBHEREEEH
B-AOEREEREEAERDR(A
ERHH)  RIEATRRETREN
RETR(ELAIRREEER) -

RZZE—tF AEBH KA K& Fm
SHETR B#E-_ZT—tF+-_AF=+
—HAEFE ASEEHSHEEGBANER
2,026,600,0008 L (B 2T —~F+=
A=+—H81E & A : #2,145,900,000/%
TC) o PR ER FE{f BR & A1) ) 537,700,000
TEEZZE—R"F+-_A=+—HIENE
B 3% A 47 /490,200,0005 7T) © ¥k 48
TENFEZERARYBENRERRRE
BNMIGHETE -

£ F R 4 & #9189,000,0005 T (B = —
E-RF+ZA=+—HBLEALAAR:H
217,500,000 7t) * EFMEL AE9.3% ° 7
BHRPEEFCENERLDIZHEERE
MO M BHELERE -

BHE-_ZE—+FE+-_A=t+—RHILEE -
BREARBERF SR E18.98 U &
1668 M(HE-_ZT—X"F+-_A=1+—8H
ENEA: SREARESEF L A5
AL K2 27.8781l) o

FERBHRER

—E+tF AREEERXRBAEGE
B BRETOESENEAE  2RE
EFE WA £EBELHRETE
B &EERNBEN  HBAEMITFE
MR - RIBERFATR A M EIER
RN TR+ FRZFEHRBEGDPE L 1
’6.9% L ZF— NFERBMKRO2EHT
DECERBTIERSECS%H 2 FL
EREER  HPELCEEBEETE AR
Bt BEBELEFER HBEKA
MERERFTEHE N HEEERNTE
TERHE— 18R o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEBNWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
(Continued)

Automotive Engines Business (Continued)

Under the influence of the decline in the preferential taxation
policy on purchase for cars with displacement of 1.6L or lower,
which raised the tax rate from 5% to 7.5% and to 10% in 2018,
certain car sales that might have concluded in the first half of 2017
had been brought forward in 2016, leading to a slowdown in the
overall sales volume in the first half of 2017. In the second half of
the year, although the sale volume of automobiles increased, the
overall sales volume of the whole year recorded a certain decline.

The Group aims to produce and distribute high quality products
at a competitive price point through extensive research and
development to identify innovative solutions to increase cost
efficiency and product quality. Through a selective procurement
process, the Group sources materials from renowned suppliers who
can consistently deliver top notch materials in an efficient and
cost-effective manner. As consumers continue to demand higher
capacity engines in motor vehicles, the Group is well-positioned to
take advantage of a robust growth through both the regular and
turbo engines.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of the
Automotive Engines Business was approximately HK$1,478.3
million (nine months ended 31 December 2016: approximately
HK$1,770.0 million), represented approximately 72.9% of the total
revenue of the Group. Average monthly production decreased
approximately 52.8% from 16,177 units per month for the nine
months ended 31 December 2016 to 7,636 units per month for
the year ended 31 December 2017. Notwithstanding the sale
guantities was significantly decreased by approximately 52.8%, the
revenue merely decreased by approximately 16.5%, which were
mainly attributable to: i) the policy such as the cancellation of the
preferential vehicle tax policies; and ii) the change in product mix
(i.e. higher proportion of higher-priced models and thus higher
average selling price).

Excluding the amortisation of intangible assets amounting to
approximately HK$61.8 million (nine months ended 31 December
2016: approximately HK$83.6 million), the gross profit margin of
the Automotive Engines Business decreased from approximately
16.8% for the nine months ended 31 December 2016 to
approximately 15.8% for the year ended 31 December 2017.

12 Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
(Continued)

Automotive Engines Business (Continued)

The segment results of the Automotive Engines Business reached
approximately HK$200.4 million (nine months ended 31 December
2016: approximately HK$275.4 million) excluding the amortisation
of intangible assets and deferred tax credit amounting to
approximately HK$61.8 million (nine months ended 31 December
2016: approximately HK$83.6 million) and approximately HK$9.3
million (nine months ended 31 December 2016: approximately
HK12.5 million) respectively,
accounting treatment on the acquisition but no cash flow effect
to the Group.

which merely represented an

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (the “Engines
SPA") dated 12 October 2015, 20 November 2015, 15 January
2016 and 31 December 2017 in relation to the acquisition of the
Automotive Engines Business, the vendor has irrevocably warranted
and guaranteed to the Company that the audited profit after tax
of the Automotive Engines Business shall not be less than the
aggregate sum of HK$170.0 million (the “1st Guaranteed Profit"”)
and HK$230.0 million (the “2nd Guaranteed Profit” collectively, the
“Total Guaranteed Profit”) for the two years ended 28 February
2017 (the "1st Profit Guaranteed Period”) and 2018 (the “2nd
Profit Guaranteed Period”) respectively. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the aggregate sum of the Total Guaranteed
Profit were already achieved. Although under the influence of the
change of preferential taxation on purchase for cars, driven by
the progressively increasing demand and consumer spending on
automotive and positive results during the reporting period, the
Board is confident of good prospects with healthy and sustainable
growth in the Automotive Engines Business and expect the revenue
stream of the Group would be further recovered next year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
(Continued)

Civil Engineering and Construction Business

All of the Group’s contracts undertaken for both civil and building
construction business were for customers which are independent
third parties including certain departments of the Government of
Hong Kong, public utilities companies and private organizations in
Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of Group's
civil engineering works and building construction and maintenance
works were approximately HK$548.3 million (nine months ended
31 December 2016: approximately HK$376.0 million). For the
year under review, included in the turnover was: (i) revenue from
civil engineering works of approximately HK$455.8 million (nine
months ended 31 December 2016: HK$357.4 million); and (ii)
revenue from building construction and maintenance works of
approximately HK$92.5 million (nine months ended 31 December
2016: approximately HK$18.6 million).

The overall gross profit margin of this segment was 3.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (nine months ended 31 December
2016: 1.0%). As of 31 December 2017, the Group had 18 significant
projects in progress. Two of them were building construction and
maintenance projects while the remaining were civil engineering
construction projects.

As of 31 December 2017, the total contract sum and the total
outstanding values of the Group’s substantial projects in progress
were approximately HK$2,272.0 million and HK$491.0 million
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
(Continued)

Civil Engineering and Construction Business (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group was awarded
with the following new substantial contracts:

o Provision of Barrier-free Access Facilities for Highway
Structures — Phase 3 Contract 8
o Provision of Barrier-free Access Facilities for Highway

Structures — Phase 3 Contract 9

o Term Contract for Provision of Civil Engineering Works for
the Telecommunication Networks and Associated Facilities

o Provision of Integrated Field Works for Field Services in NTC
region

° Foundation, Site Formation, Road & Drainage for Public Rental
Housing Development at Queen’s Hill Site 1, Fanling, Phases
1, 2 and 5

PROSPECT

The first half of 2017 witnessed the slowdown of the growth of
China's auto markets. With the dampened influence of the 1.6L
policy for passenger vehicles, the market demand was on the
gradual rise in the second half of 2017. It is predicted that the
rise will follow the trend of going low at first and then high later
and maintain the growth rate of 3-5% in the next year. As for
commercial vehicles, we hold the optimistic view for the whole
year as the governance on the vehicle carrying capacity and size
continues to be favourable to market demand.

The Automotive Engines Business became a principal activities of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017. Although the
influence of the policy such as the cancellation of the preferential
vehicle tax policies, the sales of automotive engines of the
Group experienced decrease to a certain extent during the year.
With strong support from the Chinese government, this industry
is expected to experience steady and substantial growth over
the next five years. The key drivers for future growth include
China’s substantial domestic demand, particularly in rural regions,
government support, and the development of more foreign markets.
The Group remains optimistic on the demand of automotive engines
and thus stimulating the Automotive Engines Business.
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PROSPECT (Continued)

In the meantime, the Group will continuously focus on research
and development to develop automotive engines with high quality
and advanced features to enhance market penetration and brand
recognition. Also, expanding distribution channels and sourcing
other suppliers to provide materials with stable quality and with
lower cost are the future goals to enhance competitiveness from
the automotive engines market. The Group strives to develop the
Automotive Engines Business.

On the other hand, although the operating environment of the
construction business is expected to remain tough in the coming years
such as continuously rising wages and cost of construction materials
and shortage of skilled labour, the Board is confident that the Group
would be capable of securing promising business opportunities
given its vast experience in handling a wide variety of construction
works. The Group will continue to adopt a prudent approach when
submitting new tenders. In addition, the Group will make use of its
competitive strengths by continuing to improve its quality of service
and competitiveness to capitalise on the trend of increasing civil
engineering construction works projects in Hong Kong in the coming
years to further strengthen the Group’s business growth.

Looking ahead, the Group remains optimistic on the business
outlook for the years ahead. Through diversification into the
automotive industry with the acquisition of the Automotive Engines
Business, the Group believes that the additional streams of revenue
will strengthen the financial position of the Group. Despite the
current competitive market, the Group will continue to deliver
quality products at a competitive price point to achieve sustainable
long term growth.

OUTLOOK

In recent years, the construction industry is confronted with
fierce market competition due to the challenges such as rising
costs and shortage of manpower. As stated in the Financial
Budget for the fiscal year from 2018 to 2019, the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region government will continue to devote
resources to infrastructure projects.
the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the construction
industry in Hong Kong. Looking forward, the Group will adopt
a prudent approach when bidding new construction projects. At
the same time, the Group will also continue to control the overall
construction costs to maintain its competitiveness.

Despite the challenges,
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK (Continued)

Looking ahead, the Group remains optimistic on the business outlook
for the years ahead. Through diversification into the automotive
industry with the acquisition of the Automotive Engines Business, the
Group believes that the additional streams of revenue will strengthen
the financial position of the Group. Despite the current competitive
market, the Group will continue to deliver quality products at a
competitive price point to achieve sustainable long term growth.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31
31 December 2016: Nil).

December 2017 (nine months ended

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,

LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$68.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 175.5% from approximately HK$24.9 million as at
31 December 2016. The increase was mainly attributable to the
combined effect of (i) net cash flows generated from financing
activities in respect of the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings; and (ii) net cash inflow from operating activities in
respect of the Group’s business. The Group had not pledged any
bank deposits for the bank loans.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents were denominated in HK$
and RMB.

As at 31 December 2017, the total assets were approximately
HK$2,509.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately 3.3%
from approximately HK$2,594.8 million as at 31 December 2016.
The slight decrease was mainly due to the decrease in accounts and
bills receivable which decrease represented at HK$199.5 million.
It is because the revenue of Automotive Engines Business was
decreased.

As at 31 December 2017, the total liabilities were approximately
HK$1,806.9 million, representing an decrease of approximately
11.6% from approximately HK$2,043.4 million as at 31 December
2016. Given the acquisition of the Automotive Engines Business,
the Company issued convertible bonds and promissory notes
at principal amount of HK$390.0 million and HK$410.0 million
respectively, as the consideration.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING (Continued)

On 31 December 2017, Future Marvel Limited (the “Purchaser”),
Power Expert Global Limited (“Power Expert”, or the “Vendor”)
and Ms. Weng Guangmin (the “Guarantor”) entered into a third
supplemental agreement (the “3rd Supplemental Agreement”) to
make certain amendments to the Engines SPA as set out below:

iii)

18

the maturity date of the convertible bonds and promissory
notes shall be extended for 2 years from 4 February 2018 to
4 February 2020;

the interest rate of the promissory notes shall be adjusted
downward from 10% to 8% per annum for the extension
period from 5 February 2018 to 4 February 2020 and all
accrued and outstanding interest under the promissory notes
shall be repaid on the extended maturity date of 4 February
2020; and

compensation for the 2nd Profit Guarantee Period will be
amended (the “2nd PG Amendment”) to the effect that if
the aggregate sum of the actual audited consolidated profit
after tax of the Automotive Engines Group for the 1st Profit
Guarantee Period and the actual audited consolidated profit
after tax of the Automotive Engines Group for the 2nd Profit
Guarantee Period (collectively the “Total Actual Profit”) is less
than the aggregate sum of the 1st Guaranteed Profit and
the 2nd Guaranteed Profit (i.e. HK$400.0 million), the vendor
shall compensate (the “2nd Period Compensation”) the
Purchaser by 3 times of the amount of shortfall, as calculated
according to the following formula: 2nd Period Compensation
= (Total Guaranteed Profit — Total Actual Profit) x 3. If
the Total Actual Profit is equal to or more than the Total
Guaranteed Profit, the vendor and the Purchaser shall procure
the escrow agent engaged by the Purchaser to release to
the vendor the promissory notes in the principal amount of
approximately HK$235.8 million and the convertible bonds
in the principal amount of approximately HK$224.3 million
within 10 business days after the issue of the 2nd auditors’
certificate (or such other day as the vendor and the Purchaser
may agree).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING (Continued)

Further details of which are set out in the Company’'s
announcement dated 31 December 2017 and the Company’s
circular dated 20 March 2018.

As certain condition precedent in the 3rd Supplemental Agreement
have not yet been fulfilled as at 31 December 2017, the convertible
bonds were due in 4 February 2018 with non-interest bearing and
its carrying amount as at 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$778.4 million (31 December 2016: approximately HK$750.5
million) in which approximately HK$390.7 million was recognised
as equity as at 31 December 2016 and HK$387.7 million was
recognised as current liabilities as at 31 December 2017. The
promissory notes are interest-bearing of 10.0% per annum the
interest rate of the promissory notes shall be 8.0% per annum for
the extension period from 5 February 2018 to 4 February 2020
and all accrued and outstanding interest under the promissory
notes shall be repaid on the extended maturity date of 4 February
2020; and its carrying amount as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$473.9 million (31 December 2016: approximately
HK$453.9 million). Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
the Group comprised (1) other loans from independent third parties
of HK$42.5 million (31 December 2016: HK$20.0 million) with the
contractual interest of 5.0% to 12.0% per annum; and (2) bank
loans of HK$3.9 million (31 December 2016: HK$ Nil) with an
interest rate of the Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR")
plus 2.5% per annum; of which a corporate guarantee was given
by the Company on the bank loans. They are repayable within 1
year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had banking facilities of
HK$34.0 million (31 December 2016: HK$30.0 million) which
HK$7.1 million was not utilised and was secured by corporate
guarantees.

As at 31 December 2017, the net current assets were
approximately HK$171.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 55.1% from approximately HK$381.4 million as
at 31 December 2016. The significant decrease in net current
assets was attributable to the convertible bonds due in February
2018. And the net assets were approximately HK$702.6
million, representing an increase of approximately 27.4% from
approximately HK$551.4 million as at 31 December 2016.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, FINANCIAL RESOURCES,
LIQUIDITY AND GEARING (Continued)

Current ratio of the Group was maintained at a healthy level at
approximately 1.1 as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
approximately 1.3). Current ratio is calculated by dividing current
assets by current liabilities.

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the amount of net cash and
bank balances (interest-bearing borrowings, liability component of
the convertible bonds and promissory notes less cash and cash
equivalent) divided by the total equity. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group’s gearing ratio was therefore approximately 119.5%
(31 December 2016: approximately 146.7%).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 4 February 2016, the Company issued zero coupon convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of HK$390.0 million
to Power Expert as part of the consideration for the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Automotive Engines Group in October
2015. The maturity date of the convertible bonds is on the second
anniversary of the date of issuance (i.e. 4 February 2018). Pursuant
to the 3rd Engines SPA dated 31 December 2017, the maturity date
of the convertible bond was extended for 2 years from 4 February
2018 to 4 February 2020. The convertible bonds bear no interest
on the principal amount. No security or guarantee is granted in
respect of the convertible bonds. The convertible bonds can be
converted into 195,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company at the
initial conversion price of HK$2.00 per conversion share (subject to
adjustment pursuant to the terms of the convertible bonds). The
Company may at any time before the maturity date by written
notice redeem the convertible bonds at 100% of the principal
amount. Any amount of the convertible bonds which is redeemed
by the Company will forthwith be cancelled. At 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2016, no convertible bonds were converted and
the outstanding principal amount of the convertible bonds was
HK$390.0 million.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$390.0 million were deposited
with an escrow agent in favour of the Company as security for
the 1st Guaranteed Profit (i.e. HK$170.0 million for the year
ending 28 February 2017) and the 2nd Guaranteed Profit (i.e.
HK$230.0 million for the year ending 28 February 2018). The
convertible bonds in the principal amounts of HK$165,750,000 and
HK$224,250,000 shall be released to Power Expert if the audited
consolidated profits after tax of the Automotive Engines Group
for the two years ending 28 February 2017 and 2018 are equal to
or more than the 1st Guaranteed Profit and the 2nd Guaranteed
Profit, respectively, after the issue of the auditors’ certificate for
each period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Detail of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note 33
to the financial statements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in HK$
and RMB, which are the functional currencies of respective group
companies. The Group has not entered into any instruments on
the foreign exchange exposure. The Group will closely monitor
exchange rate movement and will take appropriate activities to
reduce the exchange risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 896
employees (31 December 2016: 793) in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group’s remuneration policy is reviewed periodically and
determined by reference to market terms, company performance,
and individual qualifications and performance. Other staff benefits
include bonuses awarded on discretionary basis, mandatory
provident fund scheme for Hong Kong employees, state-sponsored
retirement plans for PRC employees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEBNWE DN

GRANT OF SHARE OPTIONS

The purpose of the share option scheme of the Company (the
“Share Option Scheme”) is to enable the Company to grant
options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution or potential contribution to the Company.
As part of the remuneration package relating to the appointment
of Ms. Liu Yan (the “Grantee”) as an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, options were granted to
the Grantee on 22 December 2016 to subscribe up to 2,000,000
shares of the Company (the “Options”) at a subscription price
of HK$8.12 per share of the Company with a validity period of
3 years. During the option period, the Options may be exercised
by the Grantee at any time or times. Ms. Liu has resigned as the
chief executive officer of the Company and an executive Director
with effect from 1 March 2017 due to other business engagement
which requires more of her attention and dedication. According
to the Share Option Scheme, the Options automatically lapsed on
the date of Ms. Liu ceased to be an eligible participant by reason
of voluntary resignation of her directorship.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Subsequent to the passing of a special resolution in relation to the
change of company name by the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 16 January 2017, the Certificate of Incorporation
on Change of Name of the Company was issued by the Registrar
of Companies in the Cayman Islands regarding the change of the
English and Chinese names of the Company to “Bisu Technology
Group International Limited” and “Lb B S BB R AR AR "
respectively, with effect from 16 January 2017. The Certificate of
Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong
Company was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
on 2 February 2017 confirming the registration of the new English
and Chinese names of the Company in Hong Kong under Part 16
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Completion of Change of Company Name"). Further
details of the Completion of Change of Company Name are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 16 January 2017 and
6 February 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

Pursuant to the resolution of the Board dated 30 December
2016, the Group's financial year end date has been changed from
31 March to 31 December. The change is to align the financial year
end date of the Company with those of the principal subsidiaries
in the Automotive Engines Business in order to facilitate the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
and for the benefit of the overall development of the Group in
the long run.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE

MEMBER

With effect from 1 March 2017, Mr. Lo Kin Ching Joseph has
been appointed as the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and an executive Director and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) (the
"Appointment”). Ms. Liu Yan has resigned as the chief executive
officer of the Company and an executive Director with effect from
1 March 2017 due to other business engagement which requires
more of her attention and dedication (the “Resignation”). Mr.
Wong Hin Shek has ceased to be the Chairman and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee, but has been appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company and remains to be an executive
Director and a member of the Nomination Committee all with
effect from 1 March 2017 (the “Re-designation”). Further details
of the Appointment, the Resignation and the Redesignation are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 1 March 2017.

NO MATERIAL CHANGE

There has been no material change in the Group’s financial position
or business since the publication of the latest annual report of the
Company for the nine months ended 31 December 2016.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENCGREEEBR

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Kin Ching Joseph, aged 61, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chairman of the Board on 1 March 2017. Mr.
Lo is also the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Lo is a chartered certified accountant, fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK, a certified
public accountant, fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

Mr. Lo had worked with Deloitte for 36 years of which as a Partner
for 28 years. He was the Chairman of Deloitte China and Hong
Kong. He has 40 years of professional experience in providing
auditing, financial advisory, restructuring, insolvency, mergers &
acquisitions and initial public offering services.

Mr. Lo has a number of public appointments. He is member of
the Court of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, member of the
Standing Commission on Civil Service Salaries and Conditions of
Service, Hong Kong; member of the Hospital Governing Committee
of Queen Mary Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital, Hong Kong;
member of the Committee of Overseers of Wu Yee Sun College,
the Chinese University of Hong Kong; member of the Board of
Governors of Chu Hai College of Higher Education, Hong Kong;
committee member of the Hong Kong Arts Development Council
Fund; Director of Hong Kong Design Centre Ltd., member of 10th
and 11th of Hebei Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (CPPCQC).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wong Hin Shek, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company on 20 July
2015 and 1 March 2017 respectively. Mr. Wong is also a member
of the nomination committee of the Company. He obtained a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Toronto in
Canada and a Master of Science degree in Financial Management
from University of London in the United Kingdom. Mr. Wong has
over 23 years of experience in the investment banking industry. He
has been involved in the management, business development and
strategic investment of Hong Kong listed companies, which engage
in the businesses of environmental protection, hotel, manufacturing
industries and software. Mr. Wong is the responsible officer of
Veda Capital Limited, a licensed corporation which carries out
Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) reqgulated activity under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”). He is currently the
chairman and an executive director of DeTai New Energy Group
Limited (stock code: 559) and a non-executive director of Sino Golf
Holdings Limited (stock code: 361). The shares of these companies
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Wong is also currently
an executive director of GET Holdings Limited (stock code: 8100),
whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He
was an executive director of Dongwu Cement International Limited
(stock code: 695) from November 2016 to August 2017. The shares
of this company is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Xing Bin, aged 29, was appointed as an executive Director on
11 September 2015. Mr. Xing holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Business
Administration in Accounting from Peking University. Mr. Xing has
over 6 years of solid experiences in the field of finance from his
past work experiences.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENCGREEEBR

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chu Yin Yin, Georgiana, aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 July 2015. Ms. Chu is
also a member of each of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Company.
She obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration Degree in
Accountancy from The University of Hong Kong and a Master of
Corporate Governance Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Ms. Chu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of the Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Ms. Chu is also a fellow member of both
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the
Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Prior to joining the
Company, she has over 16 years' extensive experience by working in
an international audit firm and other listed companies. Ms. Chu is
currently an executive director of China Water Industry Group Limited
(stock code: 1129) and an independent non-executive director of
Sino Golf Holdings Limited (stock code: 361). The shares of these
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yip Tai Him, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 July 2015. Mr. Yip is also the chairman
of the remuneration committee of the Company, a member of
each of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He has been a practising accountant in Hong Kong since
1999. Mr. Yip is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 20 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and financial management.
Mr. Yip is currently an independent non-executive director of each
of Shentong Robot Education Group Company Limited (stock code:
8206), GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 3800), Redco
Properties Group Limited (stock code: 1622), Sino Golf Holdings
Limited (stock code: 361) and Epicurean and Company, Limited (stock
code: 8213). The shares of these companies are listed on the Main
Board or the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Yip was an independent non-executive director of
each of Vinco Financial Group Limited (stock code: 8340) from May
2008 to August 2016, Lajin Entertainment Network Group Limited
(previously known as China Media and Films Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 8172) from December 2008 to April 2015. The shares of these
companies are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Chan Kai Wing, aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 July 2015. Mr. Chan is also the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company, a member
of each of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Economics from Macquarie University in Sydney, Australia in April
1986. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is
currently the managing director and founder of Mandarin Capital
Enterprise Limited, a company specialised in the provision of
financial advisory services in the area of accounting, merger and
acquisition and corporate restructuring for both listed and private
companies in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China,
whose clients include companies in the real estate development
industry and dairy industry etc. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of each of China Conch Venture Holdings
Limited (stock code: 586), China Assurance Finance Group Limited
(stock code: 8090), Sino Golf Holdings Limited (stock code: 361)
and Nanfang Communication Holdings Limited (stock code: 1617).
The shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board or GEM
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan worked in the audit department
of Ernst & Young in Hong Kong from 1988 to 1991. He was also
a director and the financial controller of Shenzhen China Bicycle
Company (Holdings) Limited, a listed company in the People’s
Republic of China from 1991 to 1999.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENCGREEEBR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Po Ling, Pauline, aged 40, was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 10 August 2015. She obtained a bachelor’s
degree in accountancy and a master degree in corporate
governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate member the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. She is also a member of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrator, the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Ms. Wong has over 15 years of experience in financial
management, mergers and acquisitions and corporate governance
matters.

Mr. Lee Yan Fai, aged 33, was appointed as Financial Controller
on 20 August 2015. He obtained a bachelor degree in accounting.
He is a practicing member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute. Mr. Lee has 10 years of solid experiences in
the area of accounting, merger and acquisition and initial public
offering for both listed and private companies in Hong Kong and
the PRC by working in international audit firms and other listed
company prior to joining the Company.

Mr. Lai Kon Ting, aged 38, is the Contracts Manager of our
Group, responsible for implementation of works and the overall
management of contracts. Mr. Lai obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Civil and Structural Engineering in November 2001 from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and Degree of Master
of Science in Engineering (Infrastructure Project Management) from
The University of Hong Kong in November 2014. He is a Chartered
Engineer of Engineering Council, United Kingdom and a corporate
member of the Institution of Civil Engineers and the HKIE as well
as a Registered Professional Engineer (Civil). He has over 10 years of
experience in the construction of roads and utilities works, landslip
prevention, waterworks and building works. He is also a Tutor for
Excel in the HKIE Engineering Graduate Training (Scheme A) for
graduate engineers.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Wong Kin Sang, aged 38, is the Project Manager of our
Group, responsible for all activities on site to ensure the efficient
running of a project and effective use of resources. Mr. Wong
obtained a Bachelor Degree in Civil and Structural Engineering in
November 2002 from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is a corporate member of the HKIE. He has over
10 years of experience in the construction of waterworks, roads
and utilities works, landslip prevention and building works. He is
also a Tutor for Excel in the HKIE Engineering Graduate Training
(Scheme A) for graduate engineers.

Mr. Wong Kin Yan, aged 48, is the Environmental and Quality
Manager of our Group, responsible for the implementation
and maintenance of our Group's environmental and quality
management systems. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Applied Science in December 1994 from Hong Kong Baptist
University. He is a Chartered Environmentalist and a corporate
member of the Society of Environmental Engineers. He has over 15
years of experience in the environmental and quality management
in the construction field. He is the Management Representative
of Excel’s ISO 9001 Quality Management System and ISO 14001
Environmental Management System.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company
has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange since
11 December 2013, the date on which dealings in its shares (the
“Shares”) first commence on the Stock Exchange.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the CG Code with the following
exception:

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code requires that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The independent non-executive Directors have not been
appointed for any specific terms as they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure they comply with the CG Code and align with the latest
developments.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance of the Group. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of
the Group to the senior management of the Group. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three
Board committees including the audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference.
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Corporate Governance Report

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2017, the Board is composed of six Directors,
including three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 24 to 29 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive Directors. Having considered the guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation on
independence as required under the Listing Rules; (ii) the absence
of involvement in the daily management of the Company; (iii)
the absence of any relationships or circumstances which would
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment; and (iv)
the absence of remuneration from the Company other than the
directors’ fee.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. All Directors have separate and independent
access to the advices and services of the senior management
and the company secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.
When needed and upon making request to the Board, the
independent non-executive Directors may obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense in carrying out their
duties.
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Saved as disclosed in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report, there are no
relationships (including financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Wong Hin Shek started to act as the Chairman from 10 August
2015. Since then, the Company did not have any officer with
the title of Chief Executive Officer up to 22 December 2016. The
overall responsibility of supervising and ensuring that the Group
functions in line with the order of the Board in terms of day-to-day
operations and execution is vested in the Board itself. Ms. Liu Yan
("Ms. Liu") was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer as well
as an executive Director on 22 December 2016. Subsequently, Ms.
Liu has resigned as the Chief Executive Officer and an executive
Director with effect from 1 March 2017 due to other business
engagement which requires more of her attention and dedication.
Mr. Wong Hin Shek has been appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Lo Kin Ching Joseph has been appointed as the
Chairman both with effect from 1 March 2017. The roles and
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer have been clearly established.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Chairman has
met with the independent non-executive Directors without the
executive Directors present.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional

Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. The Company continuously updates the Directors
on the Group’s businesses and the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

According to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.
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The Company has requested from each director and maintained
their records of training received during the year ended
31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, all Directors pursued
continuous professional development and relevant details are set

out below:

Name of Director
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Types of training

EEng Z % R
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lo Kin Ching Joseph (Chairman of the Board) BREEAE(EFSFE) A, B
Mr. Wong Hin Shek (Chief Executive Officer) TREEE(TTEAR) A, B
Mr. Xing Bin & 5 & B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES

Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana KT+ A, B
Mr. Yip Tai Him EREAEE B
Mr. Chan Kai Wing BoR 4 28 5 4 A, B
Remarks: 5T R

A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums

B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials
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B— BURMTL BRI AR, XS AR
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company, which does not specify any fixed term of service and may
be terminated by either party giving to the other not less than one-
month prior notice in writing. They are also subject to retirement
and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

According to the Articles, the Board has the power at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional Director. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election. Besides, at every annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring the appointment, re-election and succession planning
of Directors.
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Meetings

Code Provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least four regular board
meetings should be held in each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of majority of Directors, either
in person or through electronic means of communication.

The Company convened and held nine Board meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Additional Board meetings will be convened, as and when required,
to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who is not able to present
physically may participate at any Board meeting through electronic
means of communication, such as conference telephone or other
similar communication equipment, in accordance with the Articles.

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14
days in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board
meetings and committee meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman to prepare the meeting notice and agenda.
Each Director may include any item in the agenda. The agenda,
accompanied by meeting papers with sufficient and reliable
information, are sent to each Director at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to enable the Directors to
make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed, except
where a Board meeting or committee meeting is convened on a
very urgent basis to consider any urgent ad hoc matter.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes will normally be circulated to Directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, nine Board meetings,
three Audit Committee meetings, two Remuneration Committee
meetings, two Nomination Committee meetings and two general
meetings were held. Details of individual Directors’ attendance at
these meetings are set out in the following table:
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SHEMMABRRAE - BEERE
MFBHIINTK:
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ZEZH

Attended/Eligible to attend
BEHEREWHERY

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BR )| B
B Exee3 ZES2S8E ZES2S8R ZEggR RRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lo Kin Ching Joseph SEZELE(EFSFE) 5/8 N/A N/A 0/1 1
(Chairman of the (RZFE—+F=H—H
Board) (appointed on EZ(E)
1 March 2017)
Mr. Wong Hin Shek THEAE(THAEZ) 9/9 N/A N/A 2/2 2/2
(Chief Executive
Officer)
Mr. Xing Bin & & 8/9 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
Ms. Liu Yan (resigned on Bl L+ (R -F—+F 0/2 N/A N/A N/A 01
1 March 2017) ZA—HEE)
Independent Non- BIYFHTES
executive Directors
Ms. Chu Yin Yin AEHLL 8/9 3/3 2/2 212 212
Georgiana
Mr. Yip Tai Him ERHLE 8/9 2/3 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. Chan Kai Wing PRUEZ T A 8/9 3/3 22 2/2 2/2

N/A: Not applicable
N/A: I iE A
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

the Company

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries have
been made to all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2017.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. Remuneration paid to the
senior management (excluding the Directors) for the year ended
31 December 2017 are included in note 9 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ Liability Insurance

The Company purchases annually the Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for members of the Board. The insurance cover
is reviewed annually to ensure that the Directors and officers are
adequately protected against potential liabilities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules
3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision C.3.3 of the
CG Code.

The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

As at 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee was made up of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kai
Wing, Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana and Mr. Yip Tai Him. Mr. Chan
Kai Wing is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Chan Kai
Wing is a certified public accountant and possesses the appropriate
accounting qualifications and experiences in financial matters.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice annually and also meets
with the Company’s external auditor at least twice annually to
discuss the audit plan and to review the Company’s annual report
and accounts. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit
Committee held three meetings.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but not limited
to:

o make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of the resignation or the
dismissal of that auditor;

o review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
and reporting obligations in accordance with applicable
standards;
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o discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

o develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

o act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

o monitor the integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the Company’s annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
to review significant financial reporting judgements contained
in them;

o review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in
confidence to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters;

o review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

o discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duties to have
an effective internal control system;

o review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

o review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response.

Audit Committee also reviewed final results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2017 as well as the
audit report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting
issues and major findings in course of audit.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in compliance with
Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision B.1.2
of the CG Code.

The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’'s website and the Company’s
website.

As at 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee was made
up of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip
Tai Him, Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana and Mr. Chan Kai Wing. Mr.
Yip Tai Him is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to review
the remuneration of Directors and make recommendations to the
Board. During the year ended 31 December 2017, two meetings
of the Remuneration Committee were held.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
not limited to:

o make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management;

o determine with delegated responsibility the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management;

o review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination

of office; and

° review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct.
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established in compliance with
Code Provision A.5.1 and A.5.2 of the CG Code.

The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company's
website.

As at 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee was made
up of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Chu
Yin Yin Georgiana, Mr. Yip Tai Him and Mr. Chan Kai Wing and
two executive Directors, namely Mr. Lo Kin Ching Joseph and Mr.
Wong Hin Shek. Mr. Lo Kin Ching Joseph is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, two meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but not
limited to:

o review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations to the Board in order
to maintain an appropriate range and balance of skills,
knowledge and experience of the Board;

o identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.
In identifying suitable candidates, a
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model
and specific needs will be considered, including but not
limited to gender, age, culture, race, educational background,
professional experience, knowledge and skills;

range of diversity

o assess the independence of independent non-executive

Directors;
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o make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors; and

o conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
the Listing Rules or applicable law.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the
development and review of the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group and monitoring the compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, and reviewing the corporate governance compliance
with the Code Provisions and disclosure in the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group on a
going concern basis. The Board is provided with explanations and
information by the senior management of the Company, so that
the Directors have an informed assessment of the financial and
other information of the Group putting forward to the Board for
discussion and approval.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, there is no uncertainty
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The external auditor of the Company acknowledge his reporting
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 as set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 80 to 89 of the annual
report.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’s external auditor, Ernst & Young,
is set out below:
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HK$'000
FET
Audit service &z R & 2,080
Non-audit services: ERZIRS -
Taxation and other services 7% K E b AR 7 1,373
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL B B BB R AR B

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound risk management
and internal control systems to ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group has been conducted at least annually, covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and ensuring adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the

accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programs.

The Company conducted review of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017, in order to ensure and enhance (i) proper
process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks;
(i) main features of the risk management and internal control
systems were identified; (iii) the systems were designed to manage
the risks to achieve business objectives and provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss; (iv) appropriate
process to and (v)
effective procedures and internal controls for inside information
management.

resolve material internal control defects;

The Company has conducted a review of the internal audit function
of the Group. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group annually
and considered that the systems were effective and adequate.

EETREAFRECZAREENARE
2HE - AR ESFRAEEZER
BERAMEZERRBRMEET—RE
T SEMBEEREREEE  BREYH -
LENBRER ARG AMEX
LB REBRETAZER BIEER
K mltE NFEERT RN -

EFENEEEARA SN E R
%Zé?‘%lgiéﬁﬁﬁﬁ'uﬁﬁ

” DXEDEt%/”]"

fig

T

ARARHAEEBE_T—tF+ A=

T—RLEFEZRR aﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁiﬂr
MRES Mﬁ%&&%mﬁﬂ‘%ﬁ&
BEBENEBMAAZEEER: ()2 &5

HB@@&W%?T%FZEK%W<M
HESAEEERR  NEINEKEN I
AEREFEVTES AKREMMEEBL: (V&
BEHEERFHRERNNIPEZRE V)
NEEREBRZAEBEFRAIPEE -

ARAERARE AR EZBELETR
Ao EEEEFRARBEZAREENA
BEEERF BB ETESE  UR/Z
SHEBERR B

Annual Report 2017 —Z — L FFH 43



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

COMPANY SECRETARY

On 10 August 2015, Ms. Wong Po Ling, Pauline (“Ms. Wong”)
was appointed as the company secretary of the Company from an
external service provider. The primary corporate contact person at
the Company is Mr. Lee Yan Fai, the Financial Controller.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Ms. Wong has complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking relevant professional
training.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of timely disclosure
of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions. The various channels via
which the Company communicates with its Shareholders include
interim and annual reports, information on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company, annual general meeting and
other general meeting that may be convened.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Board Committees
will attend the annual general meeting to answer Shareholders’
questions. The external auditor of the Company will also attend
the annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and contents of the auditor’s report,
the accounting policies and auditor independence.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each substantial issue at general

meetings, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after
each general meeting.
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Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’'s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, namely, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
Shareholders who wish to put enquiries to the Board can send
their enquiries to the Company Secretary of the Company who
will ensure these enquiries to be properly directed to the Board.
Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company's
information to the extent such information is publicly available.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings and

Putting Forward Proposals

In accordance with the Articles, an extraordinary general meeting
shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no amendment made to the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2017. The latest version of the constitutional documents of the
Company is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company’s principal
subsidiaries were engaged in the business of (i) development,
production and sale of automotive engines; and (ii) civil engineering
works and building construction and maintenance.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 90 to 91 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred during the year
ended 31 December 2017, and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, are set out in the “CEO
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. A description of principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group is set out in the note 39 to the financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Our commitment to protecting the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures and
awareness in our daily business operations. Our Group encourages
environmental protection and promote awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees. Our Group also
implements green office practices such as promoting the use of
recycled papers and reducing energy consumption by switching off
idle lighting and electrical appliances.

Our Group will review its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation of our Group’s businesses and enhance
environmental sustainability.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the current financial year, as far as the Company is aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations by our Group that has a significant impact
on the business and operations of our Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus our Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. Our Group regularly reviews
the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

Our Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with business partners to achieve its long-
term goals. Accordingly, our senior management have kept good
communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
update with them when appropriate. During the current financial
year, there was no material and significant dispute between our
Group and its business partners.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (nine months ended

31 December 2016: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five period/years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 204 in this report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

thereto. There is appropriate directors’
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTION, CONVERTIBLE
BONDS AND PROMISSORY NOTES

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share
options, convertible bonds and the promissory notes during the
year are set out in notes 28, 29, 25 and 26 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the share option scheme as disclosed in the below
section headed “Share Option Scheme” and the section headed
“Convertible Bonds” of “Management Discussion and Analysis”,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the current financial year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the current financial year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the largest customer
accounted for
31 December 2016: approximately 45.0%) of the Group's total
revenues. The five largest customers accounted for approximately
84.8% (nine months ended 31 December 2016: approximately
95.3%) of the Group’s total revenues for the year ended
31 December 2017.

approximately 36.2% (nine months ended

For the Automotive Engines Business, the customer base is relatively
concentrated to certain private companies in China. The largest
customer was engaged in this segment.

For the Civil Engineering and Construction Business, the customer
base is relatively concentrated to certain departments of the
Government, public utilities companies and private organisations in
Hong Kong.

None of our Directors or their respective associates or any
Shareholder (to the knowledge of our Directors) holding more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any interest in the
five largest customers.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

Major Suppliers

The Group five largest suppliers being its suppliers for Automotive
Engines Business and sub-contractors for Civil Engineering and
Construction segment together accounted for approximately 9.5%
(nine months ended 31 December 2016: approximately 27.5%)
of the Group's total cost of sales charged to the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 2.8% (nine months ended 31 December 2016:
approximately 8.4%) of the total cost of sales charged to the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Other than as set out in the paragraph above, none of our Directors
or their associates or any Shareholders (to the knowledge of our
Directors) holding more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any interests in the five largest sub-contractors.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the current financial year are set out in note 13 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
current financial year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company had no reserve available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares to existing
Shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$2,000 (nine months ended 31 December 2016: Nil).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Company’s directors as at the date of
this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum
public float under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the current financial year and
up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Kin Ching Joseph (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 March 2017)

Mr. Wong Hin Shek (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Xing Bin

Ms. Liu Yan (resigned on 1 March 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Chu Yin Yin Georgiana

Mr. Yip Tai Him

Mr. Chan Kai Wing

Ms. Liu Yan resigned as Director with effect from 1 March 2017.
She has confirmed that she has no disagreement with the Board
and that there is no matter in respect of her resignation which
needs to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders and the
Stock Exchange.

In accordance with the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) will retire from office by
rotation and will be eligible for re-election and re-appointment at
every annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
despatched to the Shareholders in due course.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 24 to 29 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board considered all of the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the current financial year, no Director was interested in any
business apart from the Company’s business, which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s
business which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements
in this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following confirmations
from the Directors, save as disclosed in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report, there was no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to
(e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules for the year ended

31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had registered an interest or a short position in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
24 March 2016, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of the share option scheme of the Company (the
“Scheme”). The relevant listing approval was granted by the Stock
Exchange on 29 March 2016. A summary of the principal terms of
the Scheme are as follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution or potential contribution to the Company.

Participants

The eligible participant(s) of the Scheme is/are full time or part time
employees of the Group (including any directors, whether executive
or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the Group);
and any business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents
or representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or
licensors, customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the
Group or any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has
contributed or may contribute to the Group.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted at any time under this Scheme
together with options which may be granted under any other share
option schemes for the time being of the Company shall not exceed
such number of Shares as equals 10 per cent of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of approval of the Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participants (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1 per cent of the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Option period

The option period of the Scheme, in respect of any particular
option, the period to be determined and notified by the Directors
to the grantee thereof at the time of making an offer provided
that such period shall not exceed the period of ten (10) years from
the date of the grant of the particular option but subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof contained herein.

Acceptance of offer

Any offer of the option of the Company may be accepted by
an eligible participant in the duplicate letter of option grant
letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by such
eligible participant and received by the Company together with
a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof within twenty-one (21) days
from the offer date.

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined at the discretion of the
Board at its absolute discretion, provided that it shall be not less
than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date, which must be a Business Day; (b) the
average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown in the daily
guotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five (5) Business
Days immediately preceding the offer date; (c) the nominal value
of the Share on the offer date.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 29 March 2016 to offer the grant of an option to
any eligible participant. The Scheme will expire on 28 March 2026.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Remaining life of the Scheme (Continued)
Details of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and remain outstanding as at 31 December 2017 are as

follows:

Movements of share options during the year
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Lapsed/ As at
Name or category of As at Cancelled/ 31 December
participant 1 January 2017 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2017 Date of grant  Exercise price  Exercise period
B&%K/
R-B-t& BE#/ R-B-tF
SEREREIEN -A-A BR i [BXk:d BRK +t=A=t-H R EH THfE TS
HKS
BT
Director
=
— Ms. Liu (Note) 2,000,000 — — 2,000,000 — 22 December 8.120 22 December
2016 2016 to
21 December
2018
— Bkt (M) 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 - ZE-R%F 8.120 ZE-RE
+-A=t+=H +-A-+-BE
“E-N\F
TZAzt+-H
Note: Ms. Liu has resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company MiiE: B LZ+THEREHGBAKERAEZHE

and an executive Director with effect from 1 March 2017 due to
other business engagement which requires more of her attention
and dedication. According to the Share Option Scheme, the
Options automatically lapsed on the date of Ms. Liu ceased to be
an eligible participant by reason of voluntary resignation of her

directorship.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
the interests and short positions of the person (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Long positions in the issued shares/underlying shares of
the Company

FERRRRORAEBRADAEE
mRRR

R-E—tF+-A=+—RH HRESFMH
RH - RARBREERERITHRABIN
KB AR R RAR & & 7 N #1515 0 55336 1%
REBFHNEERRELMATE - UTA
TRARBNBRO LAAERDFEEAT
RIBEZBF LM EGRIEXVEBE2N3IDE
EXARANAR W ENEDS LRR

RAERARSHITREG HERG T
-}

Approximate
Number of  percentage of

ordinary shares/ issued share
underlying capital of the
Name of shareholders Notes Nature of interest shares held Company
FEBEELZAER HEXDIACHET
BRES 2B M & EatE HEROGHE RAHANEDLH
Mr. Jiang Jianhui (“Mr. Jiang") (a) Interest in a controlled corporation 150,000,000 75.0%
ZEBErE(ELED RELFEER
Ms. Wu Pei-Tzu (“Ms. Wu") (a) Interest in a controlled corporation 150,000,000 75.0%
EMELLE(R4t])) SR EER
Youth Force (a) Beneficial owner 150,000,000 75.0%
EaliaA
Ms. Weng Guangmin (“Ms. Weng"”) (b) Interest in a controlled corporation 195,000,000 97.5%
ShBrLtTHLL]) RELFEER
Power Expert (b) Beneficial owner 195,000,000 97.5%
T 8L B ER EaliaA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Continued)

Long positions in the issued shares/underlying shares of
the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a

Youth Force was legally and beneficially owned as to 71% by Mr.
Jiang and 28% by Ms. Wu. As such, Mr. Jiang and Ms. Wu are
deemed to be interested in the 150,000,000 Shares owned by Youth
Force by virtue of the SFO.

Power Expert Global Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. Weng. As
such, Ms. Weng is deemed to be interested in the 195,000,000
underlying Shares through its interests in the convertible bonds, in
the principal amount of HK$390,000,000 issued by the Company,
owned by Power Expert by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person, other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company whose
interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2017 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or his/her spouse or children under 18 years of age,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

Report of the Directors
EEgRE

FERRRROKAEBRAD PR
#m kxR (&)

RARBERTRG AREARG BT
B (&)

2

Youth ForceBZEXLEN R ZEDRIETE
NERBEETI%N28% M s o B
EZRERREIBREEFESFRBAEGIHE
R & 7 Youth Force% & #9150,000,000 %
AR EERER -

(a

HRERKERAFBIRETE2EESR -
Eit  BEFSHFRBAEGN &+
WREBEBRBERARAETASEAR
390,000,000/ T 2 AT ¥ % & 5 2 #E 2 0
THRE 3R Bk 8 2 195,000,0000% 48 B8 A% 15
FHEAEE o

BREXPIEEIN RZFT—tF+=H
=tT—H BRARFREERETHRAER
(FREZEHNEXEERESITERA
82 By ~ MR R E#ERE 2t Mok
BI—8)5 MEEAALTHGAARHR
HERIEFEF N ERPIE3361GRE R
EHERARBAFENERMFNARAF]
B SR AEBE R D AR SOR B ©

EEBAROIGEEE ZER

BREXEER&ESTRAB ZKRD -
AR MEEZE DR R
BEN RBE-_T—tEHF+-A=1+—
B 1EF JE 2 F {7 B ) 30 48 4% #E R 7 4E
MEFREZAZEBHI KRBT N\RZT
2 AR AN A R R A 3R R RE T 2% B A
@ MEERETEZSEN: ARA]%K
HERMMBAR - ERARKFRARMBER
BIMES BEA L HE - AT ERRENEM
HiZEANERESZFHEN -

Annual Report 2017 —Z —+FE 57/



Report of the Directors
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in
the usual course of business are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company did not have
any connected transactions which were subject to the reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the principles and Code Provisions as set
out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, save as disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report”, the Company has
complied with the Code Provisions in the CG Code.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other significant event
after the reporting period and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management
the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group,
discussed risk management, internal controls and financial reporting
matters and the consolidated results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The Audit Committee comprises three
members including Mr. Chan Kai Wing (Chairman), Ms. Chu Yin
Yin Georgiana and Mr. Yip Tai Him, all being independent non-
executive Directors.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Bisu Technology Group International Limited

Wong Hin Shek
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE H+ERERKRE

INTRODUCTION

Bisu Technology Group Limited (“Bisu”
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as a limited
liability company. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (Stock Code: 1372). The Company with its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group” or “we”) were engaged in
the business of (i) civil engineering works and building construction
and maintenance; and (ii) development, production and sale of
automotive engines.

International or the

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
This is the third
Report” prepared by the Group. This report mainly outlines
the commitments and strategies and
performance regarding environmental
responsibility and governance issues.

“Environmental, Social and Governance
report the Company's

protection, social

SCOPE OF COVERAGE

This report outlines the environmental and social performance
of the Group’s most material business segment operations.
During the current year ended, total revenue generated from the
automotive engine business was approximately HK$1,478 million
(nine months ended 31 December 2016: approximately HK$1,770
million), representing approximately 72.9% (nine months ended
31 December 2016: approximately 82.5%) of the Group's total
revenue. Considering the automotive engine business contributed a
significant impact to the Group in the current year ended, our third
report with particular focus on impacts arising from the following
operation locations of the Group:

o Group's headquarter office in Hong Kong; and

o Chongging automotive production base.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Relevant disclosures of this report are prepared in accordance with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities issued by the Stock Exchange. The content of this report
includes two main subject areas, being Area A — Environmental
and Area B — Social as required by the Guide.

TIME RANGE

This report is an annual report for the year from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2017.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group places high value on communication with stakeholders.
Through several channels, the Group maintains active and open
attitudes towards expectations and demands of stakeholders. The
preparation of this report, which was supported by stakeholders of
the Company, enabled the Company to have a clear understanding
on the Company’s current environmental and social development.
The information we gathered and analyzed was not only the
summary of the environmental and social works carried out
by the Group during 2017, but also the basis for the Group
to make strategies for sustainable development. The following
table summaries stakeholders’ participation channels and their
expectations and demands.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRSE

Stakeholders
RN

Participation Channels

SHERE

Topics concerned

BOX B

Shareholders/Investors

BRAREE

Clients

Employees

(==

Suppliers

HIERE
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General meetings

Interim reports/Annual reports
Direct communications

Group website
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Customer service
Daily communication
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Regular performance appraisals
Frequent meetings
Training programs
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Close communication
Order/contract execution
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Financial results

Sustainability business development

Environmental responsibility
Company transparency
R
EBARBERR
REBEEE

NEBRAE

Product quality

Protection and management on
customer information
Environmental responsibility
Integrity and business behaviors
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Career development
Health and safety
Remuneration and benefits
Sustainability development
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ESG MATERIAL AREAS AND ASPECTS, AND KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATOR (“KPI")

(A)

Environmental responsibility
We believe that the Group has a large part to play in
protecting the environment. We are committed to protecting
the environment and supporting sustainable development by
conducting our business in an environmentally responsible
manner. We believe that a successful environment
management is important for us to meet customers’ demand
in environment protection and to ensure healthy growth
and sustainable development of our business. Thus, we
set and review environmental objectives from time to time
with a target to minimise our environmental footprints, and
seek for continuous improvement. All of our environmental
management policies were developed based on

requirements and environmental standards.

local

Al. Emissions
The Group manufactures automotive engines to its
customers with its production plant in Chongging.
During the current financial year, our Chongging
production site contributed over 70% of the Group's
total revenue. Thus, impact on
the Chongging production plant is always our first

the environmental

concern. All necessary pollution emission permits for
our production facilities have been obtained from the
People’s Republic of China Government department.
During the current financial year ended, all air emissions
are required to operate within the prescribed limits set
by the local government.
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HERERRE

Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions Emitted

REREEREHAE

(Chongqing production plant) (EEBEEERE)
Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December
Type 2017 2016
BZE BHE
—E—+tF —E-KRF
+t=BA=+—-H +Z-HA=+—H
BEE IEFE 1F BR A
(Tons) (Tons)
(M) (mg)
Air Emissions
REHER
NOx 3.22 0.36
RAty
NMHC 0.087 0.01
FEREBRIED
Cco 0.48 0.71
— | bk
Wastewater
=N
Chemical Oxygen Demand 0.2 0.11
TEFEEE
Ammonia Nitrogen 0.027 0.01
FER
Suspended Solid 0.067 0.04
BEW
Waste management BE R B I8

With respect to the Group’'s automotive engine
production business, the Group strives to avoid
overstocking of materials through proper inventory and
production planning management. General industrial
wastes produced from our Chongging production
site are mainly scrap steel, waste solder and waste
packaging materials. Generally, if waste and used
materials can be recycled, such as scrap steel and waste
packaging materials, then they are sorted and recycled.
At all time, the Group is committed to improving the
recycling and reusing initiatives.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
W

Among the key emissions produced by our Chongging
production site, Nitrogen Oxides (NOx), Non-methane
Hydrocarbons (NMHC) and Carbon monoxide (CO)
were hazardous wastes. The Group has implemented
policies to mitigate the negative effect that hazardous
waste bring to the environment. Most of our facilities
have initiated hazardous waste recycling program.
Our production facilities enclosed hazardous waste
collection system whenever possible and during
the current financial period, most of the hazardous
wastes were effectively sorted and stored and recycles
by designated professional recyclers.
employees are aware of what hazardous materials are
on-site and the handling and disposal methods.

We ensure all

Use of resources

The Company is committed to reducing negative impact
to our environment by conducting our operation in an
environmentally responsible manner. In order to reduce
our environmental footprints in the workplace, we
always look for opportunities to reduce unnecessary
energy consumption and waste generation.

Electricity is the main source of energy used by our offices
in our daily operations. Other resources such as fresh
water and paper and printing ink are also consumed. The
Company has implemented various measures to achieve
low-carbon and green office, including:

Electricity consumption optimization:
o Electric appliances are required to turn-off when
unattended

° Maintain temperature of air conditioners to the
standard of 25.5 degrees in general conditions

o Replace regular incandescent light bulbs with LED
bulbs

o Encourage the use of natural light whenever
possible

o Arrange lighting zoning to ensure that only
required lighting is switched on
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RIE - HEREAR
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HE

Reducing use of water

Install automatic faucet to avoid waste of water

Educate employees to save water by use of
posters

Carry out regular leakage tests on piping and
check for overflowing tanks, worn tap washers
and other defects of the system

Use manufacturing equipment which ensure
economy in water whenever possible

Business travel reduction

Reduce number of business trips by using other
effective means of communication whenever
possible

Initiated preliminary review of air and land travel
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Emissions and use of resources
(Hong Kong headquarter office) 2017
EBMRERER
(BERERDE) —E—tF
Resources consumption
BEREE
Paper used (kg) 1.84
AE=E(FR)
Greenhouse gas emissions (“GHG Emissions”)
BERBHERCEZERBEHEKD
Scope 2 GHG Emissions' (kg of CO,)? 5,904 .1
HEVEZEREBHMR (TR ZA(HK)?
Scope 3 GHG Emissions® (kg of Co,) 4,484.2
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According to the Carbon Audit Guidelines, Scope
2 Emissions refer to energy indirect emissions. The
disclosed figures are resulted from electricity purchased
from power companies.

The power company-specific emission factor of Hong
Kong Electric Company is adopted for the calculation.

According to the Carbon Audit Guidelines, Scope 3
Emissions refer to other indirect emissions (optional for
reporting purposes). The disclosed figures are resulted
from business air travel by employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Environment and natural resources

The Group is well aware that the earth’s natural
resources are limited. Thus, apart from implementing
measures for managing resources consumption and
reducing waste generated, various other policies have
been implemented to manage the impact of our
operations on the environment and natural resources.
Natural resources that the Group consumed in
normal course of operations involve paper. To reduce
environmental impacts and raise the efficiency on
printing and minimize paper consumption, the Group
focuses on developing recycling measures and requires
all employees to:

o Default office printing as duplex in offices;

o Use of recycle paper whenever possible;

o Set wider page margins so that more text would
be filled in each page;

o Use e-mails as much as possible and reduce paper
usage on fax;

o Reuse paper printed on one side for manuscript
paper or printing paper.

Besides, considering the negative impact that our Chongging
operation site brings to the environment during normal

courses of production was unavoidable, the Group will
alternatively find ways to mitigate its effect brings to
the environment, such as planting trees in its Chongging
production site in order to reduce Co2.

Throughout the current financial year ended, the Group is

not aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous

and non-hazardous waste that have a significant impact on
the Group.

R ERERRS

A3 RERESAER
REBRAMMIKOBEAZERE
R At BT EETERE
SHEEREBERBRELRDED
Yepk - ME B i B A R B R
NEBRMHOEREEHRE
RERBEREANTE K&
EREEEBBEBREFIERANES
RERBIEAR - RIBEIRR
TEITRSBAERZER
DHEERER  AEEZH &Fﬁ
ERWEREY ERk2EBET:

o WARENITHRRR/ER

FTED:
o RAIBEMEAEUARK:
e REFTRWMASZRE $H
BEEmMATREZAR
. EEERER BRI E
E%ﬁ,

s EHEEREEITHMMAR
EERASATENAR -

Btz ERRFPNEELER
WHEREEBIETE R 2R
BERINEE AEEKSRER
CREEHRFELNTZE  fim
EEEERELEMERNURD AL
fix o

BEAMBEFEL AEEYEE
BENBRERERAERENIEER
mﬁﬁ‘ﬁ*&iﬂ%#ﬁ%&%
EEEXNEBENERY 2ERER -
MUAEEEXNERTE -

Annual Report 2017 —Z — L FFH 67



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HEREAR

(B)

68

HE

Social responsibility

B1.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt &

Employment and labour practices

Our team of 896 employees (31 December 2016:
793) are the most important asset of the Group. The
Company is devoted to shape a non-discriminating,
fair and harmonious workplace disregard
of the number of employees. The Company comply
straightly with all applicable rules and regulations of the
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”
“Employment Ordinances of Hong Kong Administrative
Region”.

diverse,

and

The Group seeks and welcomes people with talent and
passion. We are committed to establishing an inclusive,
diverse and discrimination-free culture in our Group.
On employment of employees, all job positions are
open to all with equal opportunities, decided with no
discrimination on sex, race, religion, gender, age and
disability basis, and selected on skill and competency
basis. We identify potential new hires using appropriate
assessment tools and regularly review our recruitment
mechanism to ensure criteria for recruitment aligns with
our up-to-date requirements. The Group also consider
internal promotion and job rotation to ensure equal
opportunities are given to existing employees. At all
time, we comply stringently with all applicable local
rules and regulations in anti-discrimination. There were
no reported cases on discrimination for the year 2017
(2016: nil).
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All employments are entered into proper and
standardized written contract between the employee
and the Group. Regional Human Resources Department
is set up in order to ensure that statutory obligations
of the Group are fulfilled and complied with in a
timely manner. In accordance with the requirements
of the laws of the People’s Republic of China and
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, where
appropriate, the Group provides and maintains statutory
benefits to all qualified staff, including but not
limited to mandatory provident fund, social security
insurance, medical insurance, work injury insurance and
compensation and statutory holidays.

Employees’ remunerations are determined with
reference to the market level as well as their
competency, qualifications and experience. The
Group has established a comprehensive performance
review mechanism in order to evaluate performance
of employees openly and fairly. The Group offers
competitive remuneration and benefit package to
employees to express our great gratitude towards their
effort.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 896
employees (31 December 2016: 793), with details as
follows:

Employment stauts
R RE

31 December 2017
—2—tF+=HA=+—8

31 December 2016
—E-RE+ZA=+—-H

Gender

]

31 December 2017
—Z2—tF+=A=+—H

31 December 2016
—E-RFt=-A=+-H

Age Group

FHEAR R

31 December 2017
—Z2—tF+=-A=+—H

31 December 2016
—E-XRE+ZA=+-H

Region

&

31 December 2017
—Z—tF+=ZHA=+—8H

31 December 2016
—E-XRE+ZHA=+—-H
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In addition to our employees, we also believe board
diversity plays an important role in enhancing
the Group’s sustainable development. Nomination
Committee was established not only to recognise the
terms of relevant Code Provisions of the Stock Exchange
Code, but also to review the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board from time to time. In designing
the Board’s optimal composition, a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Group’s business
model and specific needs will be considered, including
but not limited to gender, age, culture, race, educational
background, professional experience, knowledge and
skills. During the current year ended, the Company
appointed Mr. Lo Kin Ching, Joseph as Executive
Director, which has further enhanced the Board’s
independence, diversity, perspective and experience

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, details of our
Board as follows:

Gender

KR

31 December 2017
—E—tH+=-A=+—-H

31 December 2016
ZEB-XRFE+ZHA=+—8H

Age
Fhe

31 December 2017
—E—tH+=ZA=+—-H

31 December 2016
ZE-XRE+ZHA=+—8H

Designation
Bz

31 December 2017
—E2—tH+=-A=+—-H

31 December 2016
—E-AEt+=-A=+—-H
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H Male B Female
S i

M Age below 45 M Age above 45
4A5BR LA 4557 0A

M Executive Director M Independent Non-Executive Director
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B2.

Health and safety

Safety is the top priority in everything we do. In order
to achieve our goal of zero injuries, we pay special
attention to providing a healthy and safe working
environment for all of our employees. To meet our goal
of zero injuries, we strive to integrating health and
safety considerations into all aspects of our business
activities. Relevant policies as follows, including but not
limited to:

complying fully with all applicable laws and
regulations;

providing trainings, such as safety use of
equipment, emergency management and rescue,
etc.,, regularly to enhance staffs’ awareness of
relevant health and safety issues;

posting occupational safety signs in every
operation sites to alert workers the importance of
occupational safety;

reviewing and revising safety guidelines from time
to time;

performing regular check on machines and
equipments to ensure they are properly
functioning; and

carrying out emergency drills periodically to
enhance the ability of emergency preparedness
and response of workers.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS RERE

In both the current financial year and the prior financial period, MRAMBFE & £—MBHRE - ZMHRE
our Chongqing production plant achieved the Group’s goal of zero EBAXEBEHERAEBZIHTBE -
fatalities.

Safety performance of our Chongqing production base EEXEEMMNZEZRE

Year ended Period ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

S HZE

—E—+tF AN

+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—8H

IEFE 1F BA

Fatalities BT RE 0 0
Number of lost time injuries BAIKIER 1 1
Number of days lost BARRE 43 90
Number of occupational disease BERTE 0 0

Annual Report 2017 —Z —+FE 72



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRSE

74

B3.

B4.

Development and training

Our Group considers that the capabilities of our
employees are the key requirements to maintain the
Group's sustainability and to increase the revenue for
the Group. The Group offers different types of training
programs regularly and on needed basis for employees
to improve their skills and satisfy position needs.
Meanwhile, the Group encourages employees to actively
participate in position-related trainings organized by
external institutions in order to enhance individual
professional quality and efficiency, the costs of which
would be paid by the Group on application and by
discretion of the senior management.

Labor standards

The Company has a comprehensive human resources
policy in place regarding recruitment, dismissal,
leaves, holidays and benefits to support our works
on manpower resources. The Company stringently
complies with the People’s Republic of China and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region labor laws
and employment regulations, and has totally forbidden
recruitment of child labor and forced labor. In both
2016 and 2017, there were zero reported cases of
discrimination and unethical labor practices.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A
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Operation practices

As the Group regards supply chain competitiveness as one
of the core corporate competitiveness, we have maintained
supply chain management strategy of balancing between
quality and efficiency. At all time, the Group adheres to the
principle of integrity first and conducts business according to
the operation practices which are compliance with the local
rules and regulations.

B5.

Supply chain management

Our supply chains mainly cover two general categories:
(i) office supply chains; and (i) raw materials of
automotive engine supply chains. At the office level,
supply chains cover procurement for headquarter office
and are mainly focused on routine office items such as
stationery, toner and paper. At the automotive engine
segment, most items are procured for the production
of automotive engine.

The Group recognises the supply chains play in an
important role in the overall sustainability performance.
Stringent guidelines were adopted to guide the
assessment of suppliers. Suppliers are assessed for
their capability to fulfil our business needs based on
a price and non-price factors such as labor practices,
environment and quality. And at all time, the Group
required suppliers to comply with all applicable laws
and regulations and align with environmental protection
management at a minimum. Supplier assessment
guidelines will be reviewed and updated from time to
time to ensure suppliers’ best meet our business needs.
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Procurement department of the Group will continuously
seek potential new suppliers in an attempt to find
more reliable and price competitive products for
operation. To further enhance the sustainability of the
supply chains, the Group tried to source goods locally
whenever possible. In both 2017 and 2016, All suppliers
of our Chongqging manufacturing plants were located
in the Mainland China. During the current financial
year ended 31 December 2017, we procured from 6
(period ended 31 December 2016: 7) key suppliers' for
a total of RMB419,549,801 (equivalent to approximately
HK$483,908,740) (period ended 31 December
2016: RMB609,740,908 (equivalent to approximately
HK$712,482,242)), which constitutes to approximately
40% (period ended 31 December 2016: 49%) of the
total purchase amount of our Chongging manufacturing
plants.

Key Suppliers Purchase Amount by City
BT OB HERRESRE

31 December 2017
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1 Suppliers who supplied goods to the Group over RMB5,000,000 l
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Product responsibility

Product responsibility is one of the critical concerns of
the Group at all time. We believe that our commitment
to enhancing the quality of products is instrumental in
maintaining our overall reputation. We are committed
to providing customers with quality and safe products.
All new joined employees are required to participate
compulsory training program to ensure they are well
trained for their position and understand the product
standard of the Group. We also conduct stringent
quality assurance programs and quality control
procedures. All automotive engines must be tested
for their safety and quality before selling to ensure
they meet specific safety standards under the industry
regulations. In case of any noncompliance or material
quality issues found on our products, we also have
relevant task force to handle. During the current year
ended, the automotive engine segment did not receive
any complains via official complain channel and no
product sold was recall for safety and health reasons.

Meanwhile, the Group recognises the importance of
its supplier and customers’ personal data protection.
The Group has established stringent guidelines to
protect and monitor personal data and privacy. Personal
data of our suppliers and customers are treated as
highly confidential and accessible only by authorised
personnel. Internal trainings were organized in order
to ensure employees have well understanding of those
policies so that relevant guidelines could smoothly
enact. We are also devoted to protect intellectual
property rights and trademarks of our suppliers to
support their business interests and confidentiality.
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B7.

Anti-corruption

We are committed to providing quality products and
services to customers and all employees must perform
duties at the highest level of integrity, commitment and
professionalism. The Group has implemented policies
on anti-corruption in order to prevent, detect and
report misconduct. The Group also provide guidance
for all employees which are made for the purpose of
setting out the standard of behavior we expected for
our employees, such as acceptance/offer of gifts or
entertainment during the course of soliciting business,
conflict of interest and outside employment. The Group
encourages and enables employees to raise serious and
material concerns on anti-corruption and in case there is
any doubts. All reporting will be treated as confidential
and in a sensitive manner. At the same time, the
Group also welcomes communication and consultation.
With the implementation of clear policies, the Group
reported no bribery nor corruption cases in both 2017
and 2016.

Community

BS.

Community investment

We understands well the importance of making
a positive contribution to the communities where
the Group operates, and sees the interests of the
communities as one of its social responsibilities The
Group supports a harmonious and sustainable working
environment. Concerning the needs of local community,
the Group creates job opportunities in our main
operating site located in Chongging by employing over
300 local residents there.

We encourage our employees to actively participate in
charitable activities at all time. In the coming year, we
target to engage different community groups to support
and add value to communities. We will also invest our
money into communities whenever possible.
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OUTLOOK

We would like to take this opportunity to extend our sincere
gratitude to our employees, suppliers, shareholders and other
stakeholders for their long-term support and trust to the Group.
The feedbacks from these parties are of great value to us in forming
our business strategy to focus on their needs. “Excellence is not a
destination; it is a continuous journey that never ends”. Although
we believe that our performance has granted positive recognition
in the current financial period, there is still more to be done. In
the coming year, we will continue to strive to implement the best
practices in corporate social responsibility to advance the global
sustainability agenda at large.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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e
EY:

To the shareholders of Bisu Technology Group International
Limited

(Formerly known as Excel Development (Holdings) Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bisu
Technology Group International Limited (formerly known as
Excel Development (Holdings) Limited) (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 203, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit
opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had goodwill,
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
amounting to HK$498,343,000, HK$556,230,000 and
HK$43,634,000, respectively, relating to the cash-
generating unit of the development, production and sale
of the Automotive Engines Business (the "Automotive
Engines CGU"). In accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment
of Assets, management of the Company is required to
test goodwill for impairment annually. Management of
the Company is also required to determine whether there
are any impairment indicators for the intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment with reference to the
recoverable amount of the Automotive Engines CGU.

We focused on this area because this impairment

assessment is based on the recoverable amount of
the Automotive Engines CGU, which is determined by
which requires significant
management’s judgement with respect to a pre-tax cash
flow projection based on the financial budget approved by

management covering a five-year period. The projection

a value-in-use calculation,

is largely based on management’s expectations and
estimates of future results of sale of automotive engines.

Disclosures in relation to goodwill, intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment are included in notes 3,
13, 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

In evaluating management’s impairment assessment,
we involved our valuation specialists to evaluate
the valuation model and key parameters prepared
by management of the Company, giving particular
attention to the discount rate and terminal growth
rate. Our procedures also included assessment of the
key assumptions such as the sales growth rate based
on our knowledge of the business and the sales
framework agreements entered into by the Group
with its customers.

In addition, we checked the input data to supporting
evidence, such as the approved budget and the
recent historical results of the Group.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.
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B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Recoverability of accounts and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had accounts and
bills receivables amounting to HK$1,193,132,000, which
represented approximately 48% of the total assets of the
Group. No impairment of accounts and bills receivables
was recorded by the Group as at 31 December 2017.

We focused on this area because significant judgement is
required in determining the provision, with reference to
management’s assessments on the debtors based on their
repayment history, reputation, expected repayment dates
and relationship with the Group.

Disclosures in relation to accounts and bills receivables are

included in notes 3 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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In evaluating management’s impairment assessment,
our audit procedures included evaluating the ageing
of accounts and bills receivables as at 31 December
2017, checking settlements received subsequent
to the end of the reporting period and historical
repayment pattern, and identifying any events of
default or disputes with the debtors.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

B AR E

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Construction contracts — estimation of contract costs

Revenue and costs recognised for contract works
amounted to HK$548,333,000 and HK$531,466,000,
respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2017.
Revenue from construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the percentage of certified value of work performed
to date to the total contract sum of the contracts. The
contract costs are recognised by applying the percentage
of completion to the total estimated costs of the
contracts.

Significant management’s judgement is involved in
estimating the total budgeted contract costs used in
the determination of the contract costs recognised. Any
variations in estimates on the total budgeted contract
costs will affect the contract costs to be recognised.

Disclosures in relation to revenue and costs of construction

contracts are included in notes 3, 5, 7 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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In evaluating management’s estimation of budgeted
contract costs for construction contracts, which
included staff costs, subcontracting costs, materials
and other costs to be incurred for the relevant
project, we tested management’'s processes of
budget estimation and payment of construction
costs, and compared last year's budget against
current year’s budget and actual costs incurred for
the contracts.

We also checked to contracts concluded or

quotations obtained from subcontractors for
significant budgeted subcontracting costs.
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B AR E

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

misstatement when it exists.
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. CHUNG, Ho Ling.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ReBEaRkEMEZEBAX

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—tF+-A=1+—HLFE

Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE BHE
—E—+tF —E-REF
+=—A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
LtFEE lEAEA
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% THER FAET
REVENUE KA 5 2,026,599 2,145,926
Cost of sales 85 & A A (1,837,649) (1,928,463)
Gross profit EH 188,950 217,463
Other income and gains H bW A KW # 5 26,241 8,244
Administrative expenses THHX (52,109) (41,083)
Research and development costs i 25 Bk A (23,140) (4,839)
Finance costs 81 7% & F 6 (67,139) (48,277)
Change in fair value of a financial asset %A/t B3 1B B = 5 BR
at fair value through profit or loss ZEMEELAE
2 g 16 (2,911) (6,725)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B¢ A 2 A 7 69,892 124,783
Income tax expense Frig i = 10 (32,179) (34,631)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD BREEBAEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF E/HRER
THE PARENT 37,713 90,152
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE HitbZEB A (FHB)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to 7 1% 4& HA RS
be reclassified to profit or loss in EMOoEEES
subsequent periods: MEMEE
WA (E18) -
Exchange differences on translation BMEBINERD
of foreign operations M H =5 113,529 (78,126)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FHRNEMEZME
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE WA (BE)
YEAR/PERIOD 113,529 (78,126)

90 Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REeEaRkEMEEKRAX

Year ended 31 December 2017
Rt SNREE S e S ML T

Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE HZE
—E—+tF —E—RF
B~ — A = H
IEFEE 1L A
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT 5 FH&xT TET
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ®ATEE A
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF EaZmERA
THE PARENT 4 xE 151,242 12,026
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF EhEER
THE PARENT ZF| 12
Basic (HK cents) AEARCGEWD 18.9 451
Diluted (HK cents) 58 (Bl 16.6 27.8
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE BRI T
As at 31 December 2017
R=Z—tF+=A=t-H

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
+=A=+—-8B +=—A=+—8
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FHER FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI HEREE 13 44,816 45,263
Goodwill S 14 498,343 463,257
Intangible assets mEE 15 556,230 569,171
Deposits e 20 566 —
Total non-current assets EMBEERLE 1,099,955 1,077,691
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Financial asset at fair value through A REB BB R
profit or loss ZEMEE 16 — 2,91
Inventories rE 17 62,776 50,235
Gross amount due from customers JEWEFPEEH
for contract work TITRERBEE 18 66,530 27,120
Accounts and bills receivables JE U BR 7 K U = IR 19 1,193,132 1,392,597
Tax recoverable A Y =l % 18 — 3,177
Prepayments, deposits and ENRIE - EHe2 Kk
other receivables H fth JE W K 20 18,536 16,185
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 21 68,623 24,899
Total current assets mMEBEEMEE 1,409,597 1,517,124
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts payable J& 1~ BR R 22 669,677 931,748
Accruals of costs for contract work FERRAHITRERKAK 63,867 91,009
Tax payable JE N 7 1E 13,210 28,490
Other payables and accruals HiEN R LRTERER 23 57,475 64,480
Interest-bearing bank and other FFERIT R HMERK
borrowings 24 46,433 20,000
Convertible bonds AR (& % 25 387,665 —
Total current liabilities mEaEEE 1,238,327 1,135,727
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 171,270 381,397
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBER
LIABILITIES 1,271,225 1,459,088
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B RAROR R
As at 31 December 2017
R N = T e

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tF SN R
SIS E N = = e
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 E F#ET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Convertible bonds AR E 25 — 359,818
Promissory notes A E 26 473,918 453,938
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAG o7 94,693 93,960
Total non-current liabilities EnBBEAE 568,611 907,716
Net assets BEFE 702,614 551,372
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to owners BAREEAEMLESR
of the parent
Share capital [N 28 2,000 2,000
Equity component of convertible bonds 7] # J% & % 2 # 25 28 9 25 390,716 390,716
Reserves 1 30 309,898 158,656
Total equity g 702,614 551,372
Wong Hin Shek Xing Bin
FTHEE BB
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—tF+-A=1+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAREFAEN
Equity
component
Statutory  Exchange of Share
Share Share surplus  fluctuation ~ convertible option  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve bonds reserve  profits equity
EEEH SHERD TRRES BRE
BEA RAEE NES wE ZEEBD mE ROEN AR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TExT TEx FER TER TER TEr TFEx TFiExn
(note 30(a)) (note 30(b))
(M #30(@) (HF30(0)
At 1 April 2016 RZE-—AEWA-A 2,000 45,486 — (769) 390,716 — 95,518 532,951
Profit for the period A R A - - - - — — 90152 90,152
Other comprehensive loss AEBEMRAEE:
for the period:
Exchange differences on BMEFHEER
translation of foreign ERER
operations - - - (78,126) — — - (78,126)
Total comprehensive income AHF2AKALE
for the period — - - (78,126) — — 90,152 12,026
Equity-settled share option RELEHRERH
arrangements (note 29) (M1529) — — — — — 6,395 — 6,395
Transfer from retained profits RREEHEDR - - 22,924 — — — (22,924 —
At 31 December 2016 and RIT-R%E
1 January 2017 TZA=t-BR
—Z—+5—-A—H 2,000 45,436* 22,924*  (78,895)* 390,716 6,395*  162,746* 551,372
Profit for the year REE R - - - - — - 31713 37713
Other comprehensive income AEEEMZERA:
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEBNEBR
translation of foreign ERLER
operations — - - 113,529 — — — 113,529
Total comprehensive income AERZHARANEE
for the year - - - 113,529 — - 37,713 151,242
Transfer of share option reserve ~ REREXREEBE
upon the lapse of share options R E - - - - - (6,395) 6,395 —
Transfer from retained profits RREBEHEDR - — 11,939 — — — (11,939 —
At 31 December 2017 i Sl 3
+-A=1+-H 2,000 45,486* 34,863* 34,634* 390,716 —  194915% 702,614

* WEHERERERGEAMBMRRAERFTHN
47 A FE 309,898,000 T (Z & — /KN F:
158,656,000 7T) ©

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$309,898,000 (2016: HK$158,656,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-T Lot At LR

Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
'z Bz
—E—tF —T-REF
A —
LEE EAEA
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & TAERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REERELNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 75t A1l i A 69,892 124,783
Adjustments for: STIIEBELRAE:
Finance costs MB%ER 6 67,139 48,277
Interest income MEKA 5 (7) (7)
Depreciation e 7 5742 4,419
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESN 7 61,754 83,551
Gain on disposal of items of HEMSE  HER
property, plant and equipment HEHEEM K = 5 — (1)
Change in fair value of a financial asset BERAREFERERIERZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEANEE 16 2,911 6,725
Gain on modification of promissory notes {5 B X Z iR Uk & 5 (15,160) —
Equity-settled share option expense BEEEREREER 29 — 6,395
192,271 274,142
Increase in inventories FEIEM (8,390) (46,214)
Decrease/(increase) in gross amount due EREFHEL
from customers for contract work TRZ@emERLY/(Em) (39,410 3,030
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and FEWEEZ R EWE B,
bills receivables (2 m) 31(a) 272,490 (939,365)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, ERRIE ek
deposits and other receivables H At & W 5w 4 (B8 hn) (2,842) 2,258
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable FE T BR 73 0 CRl ) 31(3) (312,335) 659,683
Increase/(decrease) in accruals of costs BREAHTIEKK
for contract work #n,/ CEi ) (27,142) 52,321
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and ~ EAt B KIEIRERE N,/
accruals OB 2) (10,079) 42,303
Cash generated from operations REEEXNRSE 64,563 48,158
Interest received B F 8 7 7
Interest paid ERAE (4,152) (1,413)
PRC corporate income tax paid ENFBECEMREH (48,192) (19,663)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REEBMNEHR 3177 =
Net cash flows generated from REZBELENREREFE
operating activities 15,403 27,089

Annual Report 2017 —Z —+FE 95



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2 A s =
meERERER
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—tF+-A=1+—HLFE

Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Bz =
—E—tF . ANS
+ZHA=+—-H +=-A=+-—H
LEFE ENEA
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FTAER TAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXBKELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Additions of items of property, NEWE HRERFHEIEE
plant and equipment 13 (2,132) (4,798)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HE¥% - #EE N X EEE
plant and equipment P15 538 — 1
Net cash flows used in investing activities R EXBFERORESREFE (2,132) (4,797)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEXBELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
New interest-bearing bank and other gt BRI R EMER
borrowings 26,433 13,000
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BEFRRITREMER
other borrowings — (6,354)
Net cash flows generated from financing  RIEEBELH
activities Ren8%a 26,433 6,646
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRESESEYEMEH
EQUIVALENTS 39,704 28,938
Cash and cash equivalents at FU,/BUHNRE K
beginning of year/period ReEEY 24,899 16,885
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net %I & [& & & &) &/ 2 % 58 4,020 (20,924)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EX/BAONRER
AT END OF YEAR/PERIOD REEEY 68,623 24,899
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND B&RESZSENEHRIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHER 21 68,623 24,899
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Bisu Technology Group International Limited (formerly known
as Excel Development (Holdings) Limited) (The “Company”)
is an exempted company with limited liability incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at 21st
Floor, 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong.

During the reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were principally
engaged in the following principal activities:

o Development, production and sale of the automotive
engines (the “Automotive Engines Business”).

o Civil engineering works and building construction and
maintenance works.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company and the ultimate holding company is Youth Force
Asia Ltd., a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

1.

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&+-A=+-H

AEAIREEER

ERB R EEBEREER AR (AIE e
REREBERARDIEARA DR —M
THRERSTMKINEREERA
7] o AR A)EY FE M ¥ S5 B2 A2 7 Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ° R A AR E E & E B R
FREPRBEME K218 -

WEME - ARR R EN B AR (G

(REEDT2RETIERES:

s FH¥ LERHEIEZLDHK
(MREEPEER] -

e ITARAIBREBEBUREBFEER
REXRK -

EERR BEEERAFR&KE

% A & A& Youth Force Asia Ltd. (— &
REBREZHEBEFEMAE Y 2RF]) -
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Notes to Financial Statements
B A& R M &

31 December 2017
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1.

98

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of

registration and issued ordinary

RAREEESN(FH)

FRNBARZESR
ARRZ TEMBRABFBET

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

Company name business share capital ~ the Company  Principal activities
R -3 ERTEBER ERAREL
ACEE REFE R R A E & BEBIL TEXK
Direct Indirect
B ]
Chongging Bisu Yunbo People’s Republic RMB60,000,000 — 100 Development,
Motor Technology of China A K #60,000,0007C production and
Limited** ("Bisu Yunbo") ("PRC") sale of automotive
BEELREFEPHIRRAR HEARHNE engines
nax (LR ERF]) (T &) FHE- -AER
HETEZEPK
Excel Engineering Company Hong Kong HK$23,288,000 — 100 Civil engineering
Limited 5B 23,288,000 7T works and building
BEIREARAA construction and
maintenance
works
ITARIBUARETF
BERRE X
Excel Construction Hong Kong HK$1 — 100 Leasing of equipment
Development Limited BB 1R for construction
works
HETRE®R
* Registered as a limited liability company under the PRC law. * RIRFEZEEMABRAFA -
& The English name of this company represents the best ' BRI EEMERNRXERE - &

effort made by the management of the Company to directly
translate its Chinese name as no official English name has
been registered.
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year/period or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
These financial information have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss which

has been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“"HK$'000") except when otherwise indicated.

Owing to the change of the Group's financial year end
date from 31 March to 31
resolution of the board of directors of the Company dated
30 December 2016, the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the period ended 31 December 2016 cover a
period of nine months from 1 April to 31 December 2076.

December pursuant to the

Accordingly, the comparative amounts presented for the
current year's consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows and related notes, which were prepared for the nine
months ended 31 December 2016, are not comparable.

1.

2.1

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&+-A=+-H

RAREEEH(F)

FRNBAR 2ESR (&)
FRIMEERRIBYEAFE
AHREERARA KB B KRED
BEFEZARBMBRR  -EF
RA - FIHEAMKE QR 2 BB
SERBANRITE -

mREE
ZEVHBERIRIEREGMA
(BB EFMAS)EMZEE
M EEA (B BV HREEN])
(BREMERBMBREEN  FE
SRR ([BA ST ER ) ki) -
FRE ARG RAREE QR &P
ZHEBEREMBRHE - RIZAREE
BEBINEZEMEEARLER
B WEMBHRRDIBIEEL X
RERERE -

BRBHRAEIN  ZFHMBEERIA
BB 2%  mMAEEESD
EREREROTM(TAETD -

HRAKERBEARREESHHE
TE-RFTZA=TRHZRAERES
MRFEAFEERRA=ZA=T"HEX
RTZA=1—B XEEHZE_F
—ANFTZA=+—HILEHBZES
BBEBRRRER T —RNFOUA—
HE+T-_A=t—BNAEAHMHE - - B
- BE-FE-R"E+-A=1t—H
ENBEAMGRENAFEZHEER
mARMEMEEBRAR  HEER
BHRMGEEHERERLB BN
EAEFMERBEFNRLEME -
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31 December 2017
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&+-A=+-H
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B8 A A E) B 75 R R B AR A
— B G ET R AR R S AR
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2017

—F—

2.2

102

+E+=ZR=+—H

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Clarification of the Scope
of HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS
12 included in Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
Disclosure has been made in note 31(b) to the financial
statements upon the adoption of amendments to HKAS 7,
which require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt R EI B EEE R A
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements 2014-2016

Cycle

Annual Improvements 2015-
2017 Cycle

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts'

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®
Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures®

Transfers of Investment Property'

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

3% g
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below. The
actual impacts upon adoption could be different to those
below, depending on additional reasonable and supportable
information being made available to the Group at the time
of applying the standards and the transitional provisions and
policy options finally adopted.

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet an employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment;
and accounting where a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes
its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account for
vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled share-
based payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception so that
a share-based payment transaction with net share settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet
the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction when
certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction, the transaction is accounted for as an equity-
settled transaction from the date of the modification. On
adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments
without restating prior periods, but retrospective application
is permitted if they elect to adopt for all three amendments
and other criteria are met. The Group will adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2018. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed assessment
of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected
impacts relate to the impairment requirements and are
summarised as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are not accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to
be recorded based on an expected credit loss model either
on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group will
apply the simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present values of all
cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its accounts
receivable. Furthermore, the Group will apply the general
approach and record twelve-month expected credit losses
that are estimated based on the possible default events on
its other receivables within the next twelve months.

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate the
application of the expected loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised costs and other items that subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company,
if the expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be
recognised by the Group as at 1 January 2018 would be
slightly increased as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on accounts receivables. Such further
impairment recognised under expected credit loss model
would reduce the opening retained earnings and increase the
deferred tax assets as at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of
the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments
to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying
the standard. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect of
initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group
plans to apply the new requirements only to contracts that
are not completed before 1 January 2018. The Group expects
that the transitional adjustment to be made on 1 January

2018 upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be material.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A

23 ERMAERERZERUBR

& A ()

(= B iP5

REARBDESEOFNG WAKHE
AERAHEEERBREL  AAE
BR-ZE-N\F-A—BETERDH
Rt BEBECESRRERT LS
APEREIRERN ARG 2 HEA
N - E R R R R R TR 1
EEBERREE REHEEEEE
ARRANE-— P REKEIRN_-F
—N\F—A— BB IRE & F R D
FARFETL TR E ESE N o

FRMBREEANFISHRN T~
FLABM FTURERTPZEH
BREENRAARNHT AL ER
oo RIEFBPEMELERIFE 155
CEERNVARRBREAEFSE
EOAGEMEIRY  E2BEA/E
AR E P WELH 3% 7 AR A%
HEHE - BARMBREENFISHRA
MRA B ERERBEARHE R
REW A - ZERITRSIEEZH
EMEREERBRER  BEAKRA
Mo BEBROEBNEN A
MEENRBERPESNSHREM
BE) - ARBERHEMGEE - BE
HRKEMKEAAEEB YL R
FREAMPAERER - RIIFE
AZEAR FERATE2EPE
HIERHBBE - R_T—RNER
A BESHMRASBEMBTIEEY
BREERFBISHKINEILESR Ui
BEEMNEANEY TEREEAENL
BN Z FE R R 5l Re N 3 EE RE R A UA
KRR BiEfEE o & FEER AT
BphERERBNEABTBHHK R
FEANBISHEFREE B EA R
REEBRABEN 2K AREMRE
B - AEBEAIRNBEAYBRSE
ZRF1SFRAVEEERTE - AR
RERNBRBZERNRN T~ /\F—
A—BHRBEN RV ERETH
Boltih AREEESHRT
RARE-_Z—N\F—A—BZH*
AREKRHELD - AEBERHPEER
RABBVHERELENFISHRER
—E-N\F-A-BHETZBRELH
BB TIBREAFE -



2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
The directors of the Company have assessed the impacts on
application of HKFRS 15 and the expected impacts are as

follows:

(a)

Civil engineering works and building
construction and maintenance works

Performance obligations satisfied over time

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when an
entity transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

(i) the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity's

performance, as the entity performs;

(i)  the entity’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

(iii)  the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these three situations, then under HKFRS
15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that
good or service at a single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators that will be
considered in determining when the transfer of control
occurs.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
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(a)

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt &

Civil engineering works and building
construction and maintenance works
(Continued)

Performance obligations satisfied over time (Continued)
The Group has assessed that its contracts with
customers fulfil the criteria for recognising revenue over
time under HKFRS 15. Methods that can be used under
HKFRS 15 to measure the Group's progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
satisfied over time include (i) output method (i.e.
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurement
of the value to the customer of the entity's performance
to date) and; (ii) input method (i.e. recognise revenue
on the basis of the entity's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation). In measuring
the work progress under the new revenue standard,
the Group considers that an output method with
reference to progress certificates issued by customers
and any adjustment, where it is necessary and can be
objectively determined, on the work progress would
appropriately depict the transfer of control of goods
or services to customers for individual projects under
the new standard. So far as the measurement of
progress for the Group's typical contracts is concerned,
the Group does not expect the adoption of HKFRS
15 would significantly affect its financial position and
performance based on the assessment performed so
far.
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a)

Civil engineering works and building
construction and maintenance works
(Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract

Under HKFRS 15, if the costs incurred in fulfilling a
contract with a customer are not within the scope of
another standard, an entity shall recognise an asset
from the costs incurred to fulfil a contract only if those
costs meet all of the following criteria:

(i)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify;

(i)  The costs generate or enhance resources of
the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

(iii) The costs are expected to be recovered.

Costs that relate to satisfied performance obligations
(or partially satisfied performance obligations) in the
contracts and costs for which the Group cannot
distinguish whether the costs relate to unsatisfied
performance obligations or to satisfied performance
obligations shall be expensed as incurred under HKFRS
15.

Currently, contract costs are recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract, which is
measured with reference to the progress certificates
issued by the customers. The Group has assessed
that the adoption of HKFRS 15 may result in earlier
recognition of contract costs that relate to satisfied
performance obligations.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
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(a)

Civil engineering works and building
construction and maintenance works
(Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract (Continued)

The directors of the Company currently do not expect
the adoption of HKFRS 15 would have a significant
impact on how it recognises revenue and costs
from contracts with reference to the Group’s typical
contracts. The extent of impact on the Group’s financial
position and performance upon initial adoption of
HKFRS 15 would depend on the progress of and facts

specific to the Group’s individual contracts.

Presentation and disclosure

The presentation and disclosure requirements in HKFRS
15 are more detailed than those under the current
HKAS 18. The presentation requirements represent
a significant change from current practice and will
significantly increase the volume of disclosures required
in the Group’s financial statements. Many of the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15 are new and the
Group has assessed that the impact of some of these
disclosure requirements will be significant. In particular,
the Group expects that the notes to the financial
statements will be expanded because of the disclosure
of significant judgements made on determining the
transaction prices of those contracts that include
variable consideration, how the transaction prices
have been allocated to the performance obligations,
and the assumptions made to estimate the stand-
alone selling price of each performance obligation.
In addition, as required by HKFRS 15, the Group will
disaggregate revenue recognised from contracts with
customers into categories that depict how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows are affected by economic factors. It will also
disclose information about the relationship between
the disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue
information disclosed for each reportable segment.
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(FRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).
The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant
and equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under HKAS 17
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard
using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from
1 January 2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and is considering whether it
will choose to take advantage of the practical expedients
available and which transition approach and reliefs will be
adopted. As disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements,
at 31 December 2017, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately HK$5,558,000. Upon adoption
of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may need to
be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine the
amount of new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to
be recognised, including, but not limited to, any amounts
relating to leases of low-value assets and short term leases,
other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new leases
entered into before the date of adoption.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
the Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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114

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset'’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in

If such an

which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Machinery and equipment 10% to 24%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% to 33%

Motor vehicles 24%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents machineries in the
process of installation, which is stated and at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of installation and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of installation.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Customer contracts

Customer contracts secured on the date of acquisition are
recognised as cost of goods sold under the unit of production
method which is based on the volume of production in each
reporting period as a proportion of the total estimated units
of production for the relevant customer contracts over the
contract period.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with
positive net changes in fair value presented as other income
and gains and negative net changes in fair value presented
as finance costs in profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
held for trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and
in other expenses for receivables.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each of the reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as loans and borrowings. The
Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities
at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and other
payables, accruals of costs for contract work, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds and promissory
notes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs.
On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried
as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder
of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using weighted average method
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and, an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
tax levied by the same taxable authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

134

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can
be measured reliably, on the following bases:

@

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

from construction, renovation and other contracts,
based on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Construction,
renovation and other contracts” below;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

consultancy service fee income, when the consultancy
services are rendered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Construction, renovation and other contracts
Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and
incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct
materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed construction
overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of certified value of work
performed to date to the total contract sum of the relevant
contracts.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management. Where contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is treated as an amount due from
customers for contract work. Where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is treated as accruals of costs
for contract work.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 29 to the financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service
and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken
as at the end of the reporting period is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the end of each
reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
("ORSO") retirement benefit scheme for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the ORSO scheme. This
scheme operates in a way similar to the MPF Scheme, except
that when an employee leaves the scheme prior to his/her
interest in the Group’s employee contributions vesting fully,
the ongoing contributions payable by the Group are reduced
by the relevant amount of forfeited employer’s contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. This subsidiary is
required to contribute certain percentages of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge
of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on these monetary items
are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of certain subsidiaries operating
in the PRC is currency other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollar at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the PRC subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of the PRC subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at weighted average

exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Construction, renovation and other contracts

Revenue and profit recognition on contract work is dependent
on the estimation of the total outcome of the construction
contract, as well as the work performed to date. Based on
the Group's past experience and the nature of the contract
activities undertaken by the Group, the Group makes
estimates of the point at which it considers the work is
sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete and
the revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this
point is reached, the amount due from customers for contract
work will not include profit which the Group may eventually
realise from the work performed to date. In addition, actual
outcomes in terms of total contract costs and/or revenue may
be higher or lower than those estimated at the end of each
reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years.

3.

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&+-A=+-H

ETEERHfAE
MAXAKEEVBREAFTEEEER
HEFERA HAx BEMEEDH
s 2 B N E BE M R B R A0 AT AN
R&  LWEXAEE - A - BE
ZEBRE MBI EEN A6
ERBARARARERTEEELAR
MEREEFELERABNER -

RN AR EMS

DA $8 2t 70 ¥ 5 B R 17 £ Rl RE 5l X
BESABZHREERT — @M K
FEANXATAERFAENE KM
BmARARKRNEBZRK MARTT
EEENEMEERIR -

BiE BHRAMTIERLY

BHA TR A Fom ¥ # R AR T
PRt REANZRER UK
ESEETIREE - RBAKENU
EMNEBRLAEEMETANRD
MME  AEERRER/SIREZ
A#E JZ R VAR 5 1 R 3R TR AR R IR
ABEHMGE - Bt - EREZE
ER > BRREFPZANIRRLTE
BASBREARLESEETT
EERA G A o BN BALHKAR
R/SBANERERATEDNK
BEREREHRNME  MEED
RRFEEROUA K F

Annual Report 2017 —Z—+FF®H 141



Notes to Financial Statements
B A& R M &

31 December 2017
—E2—t+tHF+=-A=+—8H

3.

142

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Construction, renovation and other contracts (Continued)
Significant assumptions are required to estimate the total
budgeted contract costs and the recoverable variation
works that will affect whether any provision is required for
foreseeable losses. The estimates are made based on past
experience and knowledge of the project management.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2017 was HK$498,343,000 (2016: HK$463,257,000). Further
details are given in note 14.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of receivables

The Group records impairment of receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of accounts and bills
receivables, and other receivables. The identification of
doubtful debts requires directors’ estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, the
difference will impact on the carrying values of the accounts
and bills receivables and other receivables and doubtful
debt expenses in the period in which the estimate has been
changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and service and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

o Automotive engines segment — development, production
and sale of automotive engines

o Civil engineering and construction segment — civil
engineering works and building construction and
maintenance works

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decision
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit
or loss before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit or loss before
tax except that finance costs as well as head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. HEHER(E)
Automotive engines Civil engineering and construction Total
RERBH TAIRREE @t
Year Nine months Year Nine months Year Nine months
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
BE BE Bz S BZE HE
—E-tf —Z-RF —Z-tF ZE-RF —Z-tf ZE-RF
+=A=+-A +ZA=+t—-B +=A=+-B tZA=+—-H +=A=+t-BH +ZA=+-H
LEE IEAEAR LEE EAEA LLEE EAEA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET THIL THET THEL
Segment revenue B 1,478,266 1,769,966 548,333 375,960 2,026,599 2,145,926
Segment results FHEE 147,880 204,342 1,236 (6,908) 149,116 197,434
Corporate and unallocated % R A% E KA
income 15,160 —
Corporate and unallocated % & & 7 & f %
expenses (27,245) (24,374)
Finance costs B%EAR (67,139) (48,277)
Profit before tax B B0 A1 A 69,892 124,783
Other segment Hitp HEH:
information:
Capital expenditure BAREH
— operating segment —BENH 2,065 3,057 36 97 2,101 3,154
— unallocated — X9 31 1,644
2,132 4,798
Bank interest income RITFIBMA
— operating segment —KESH 2 6 5 1 7 7
Depreciation nE
— operating segment —gEnH 4,502 3712 578 428 5,080 4,140
— unallocated — Rx0kK 662 279
5,742 4,419
Amortisation of intangible %/ 4 & # 8
assets 61,754 83,551 = = 61,754 83,551
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. DEER(E)
Geographical information & &' R
Revenue from external customers @ XKEIEEFEIHKA
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Bz HE
—E2—tF ZE-RF
+=—BA=+—H +=ZH=+—H
LtEE LEENEA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
PRC H 1,478,266 1,769,966
Hong Kong &5 548,333 375,960
2,026,599 2,145,926

(b)

The revenue information above is based on the locations

of the customers.

Non-current assets

i ABEM T EREFME
o

b) FRBEE

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

—=E—+tF —E—REF

+=—A=+—-H +=-—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHE T FHE T

PRC F 1,098,206 1,075,768
Hong Kong &% 1,749 1,923
1,099,955 1,077,691

The non-current asset information above is based on

the locations of assets.

FHFRBEEEMTIERE
B PTfE i
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4.

146

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from each major customer which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group's revenue for the year/period, is set
out below:

7 #RE ¥ (&)

ITREFHNEHN
KEXZTEFEPHNRAMGAEER
FRNBARAE10%KA E - AT
FIT R -

Year Nine months

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Bz HE

—E—+tF —E-RF

+=ZA=+—-HB +ZH=+-—H

ILHEE IENEA

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAET

Customer A* BEA 608,296 965,651

Customer B* & FBt 733,617 803,360
# These customers are under the automotive engines segment. # REBPRABEBEOI TS -

Except for the aforesaid, no revenue from a single external
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group's
revenue.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
Revenue represents the appropriate proportion of contract
revenue from construction, renovation and other contracts
and the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
for returns and trade discounts.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A
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B RS AR Y A

31 December 2017
=X S BRI

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA Htt AR ()
(Continued)
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA~ Hh A R as 2 5T
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Bz H=E
—E—+F ZE-RF
+=A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
IHFE IENEAR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Revenue N
Sales of goods HEBY 1,478,266 1,769,966
Contract revenue B WA 548,333 375,960
2,026,599 2,145,926
Other income and gains H g A R =
Interest income FEHA 7 7
Consultancy fee income FER B U A 2,120 1,200
Rental income Hal A 5,150 6,350
Government subsidies* B K %8 Bh * 2,475 36
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - HERR
property, plant and equipment #IE B W = — 1
Gain on modification of promissory &M & ¥ ZiE 2
notes U 25 15,160 —
Sundry income HMIE U A 1,329 650
26,241 8,244
*  Various government grants have been received for the * RABRERACEBRREES

AR WEBHEZER
B R BITIRIF AR EMF -

business development in Chongging Province, PRC.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these subsidies.
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31 December 2017

—ET—tF+ZA=+—8H

6. FINANCE COSTS MBEHR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERASTET:
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE HE
—E—tF —E-REF
T=HA=+—-8 +=-A=+—H
LEFE IENE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Interest on bank and other borrowings 817 & H b {& X % & 4,152 1,413
Interest on promissory notes AR ERERE 35,140 27,362
Imputed interest on convertible bonds — BJ#2 i% (& %5 2 # & 7 8 27,847 19,502
67,139 48,277
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31 December 2017
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. FER® A& A
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REEBZBRBAEFMENRE, (GTA)
(crediting): T% &1\ :
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
S HE
—E—+F —E—XF
+=—A=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
IEFE IENEA
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FTER FAT
Cost of sales 8 & B AN
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKRAR 1,244,429 1,472,732
Amortisation of intangible assets BEEE®E 15 61,754 83,551
Contract costs B HI KA 531,466 372,180
1,837,649 1,928,463
Depreciation* T E* 13 5,742 4,419
Auditor’s remuneration % E R 2 2,080 1,950
Research and development costs Bt 3% A AR
— current year/period expenditure = — KEE
Hif X i 23,140 4,839
Employee benefit expense & B & N B X
(excluding directors’ and chief (TEREEENES
executive’'s remuneration THAEME
— note 8)*: — B EE8) *:
Wages and salaries TERF® 46,440 40,497
Pension scheme contributions RKAE A 5 81 4
(defined contribution MO REE ;K
schemes) E-)) 3,492 2,502
49,932 42,999
Minimum lease payments under KEHE THRIKE
operating leases e 3,948 2,449
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 7. Bﬂ%ﬁﬁ}f‘aﬂ(%;)
For the year ended 31 December 2017, depreciation HE-_Z—+tHF+-A=+—81t
and employee benefit expense of HK$4,109,000 (Nine FE -HEREERNALZS A
months ended 31 December 2016: HK$3,799,000) and 4,109,000 T (B E=_ZF — G+
HK$26,544,000 (Nine months ended 31 December 2016: ZA=+—HI1ENEA 3,799,000
HK$22,410,000), respectively, are included in cost of 75 7T) 126,544,000 T (B & —
inventories sold and contract costs provided above. —R"E+ZA=+—HIENEAR:
22,410,000% 7T) 5T A | 3P 4E 4
MEETERARE LKA -
8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERESTHRAEMSE
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BEBMIFAESLMBE (FERQ
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of a1 16 1) 5383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (o) B () fék
Securities on The Stock Exchange, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) ARCATRI(BEEERMDER) RO
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 F2H BB FRNEERZEBITHRA
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits MM T:
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Bz H=E
—E—+tF —E-REF
+=ZA=+—-H +=-H=+—H
I“FEE IENE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FET
Fees Lk 432 324
Other emoluments: H b, 3 B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in Fe o EERR
kind B & 11,760 2,231
Pension scheme contributions (defined iR Kk & % 5+ 2 £ 3%
contribution schemes) (EFEHFKEED 51 28
Equity-settled share option expense RELEBEREEZR — 6,395
11,811 8,654
12,243 8,978
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

B RS AR Y A

31 December 2017
=X S BRI

8. EERBETHAENE
(#&)

@) BAFHITES
FA/ AN T BILIERT

during the year/period were as follows: EENHEENT:

Salaries, Equity-

allowances Pension settled
and benefits scheme share option Total
Fees in kind  contributions expense remuneration

RELE

& 2H RKER BRE
e REVAE st 8t 5 BH “me
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TET TET TEL

Year ended BE-Z-+¥%
31 December 2017 +=ZB=+-H
LEE

Ms. Chu Yin Yin REHRTL 144 - = - 144
Mr. Yip Tai Him ERHEE 144 - — — 144
Mr. Chan Kai Wing PR E 144 - — — 144
432 — — — 432
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Notes to Financial Statements
B A& R M &

31 December 2017

—F—

8.

152

+E+=ZR=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERBEETHAEME
REMUNERATION (Continued) (&)
(@) Independent non-executive directors () BYFHITEE(HE)

(Continued)

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

Fees in kind

He Rl
e REDMNE
HK$'000 HK$'000

Pension  Equity-settled

scheme  share option Total
contributions expense  remuneration
RELEE
RIRET iy
AT EA ae

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FTEL FTEL FTET FTEL

Nine months ended HE-E-RF

31 December 2016 +=ZA=1+-H
Eh@EA

Ms. Chu Yin Yin KEHRZLT 108 — — — 108
Mr. Yip Tai Him ERHEE 108 — — — 108
Mr. Chan Kai Wing PR S E 108 — — — 108
324 — — — 324

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(Nine months ended 31 December 2016: Nil).

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A
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8.

Notes to Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

(b)

B RS AR Y A

31 December 2017
=5 = = e R =

8. EERBETHAENE

REMUNERATION (Continued) (%)
Executive directors (b) BMITESE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Pension settled
and benefits scheme share option Total
Fees in kind contributions expense remuneration
RELE
5¢ 28 BB B
e REWAG TEMR A “BHe
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5x TERT THERT TERT TERT THERT
Year ended BE-_Z-tF
31 December 2017 +=B=+-H
LFEE
Executive directors HOES
Mr. Lo Kin Ching BEERAE
(chairman) () (i) - 8,000 15 - 8,015
Mr. Wong Hin Shek IBELE (ii) — 2,400 18 — 2,418
Mr. Xing Bin T &4 = 360 18 — 378
Ms. Liu Yan gt (il - 1,000 — - 1,000
= 11,760 51 = 11,811
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31 December 2017
—E—+t&+=-A=+—8H

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EBRESTHRAEME
REMUNERATION (Continued) (%)
(b) Executive directors (Continued) (b) HMITEE(E)
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Equity-settled
and benefits scheme  share option Total
Fees in kind  contributions expense  remuneration
REEE
e R RINGER Bk
He REDM& FEIHR ER k)

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wi TAT TRET TRET TAT TRET

Nine months ended HE-_Z-XF
31 December 2016 +ZA=+-H

EAfEA
Executive directors BOES
Mr. Wong Hin Shek TEELE
(chairman) (£E) (ii) — 1,800 14 — 1,814
Mr. Xing Bin b Pt - 270 14 — 284
Ms. Liu Yan ggat (i) — 161 — 6,395 6,556
— 2,231 28 6,395 8,654
Notes: B 5 -
(i) Appointed on 1 March 2017 () RZZE—LEF=RA—RHEZ
T
(i)  Ceased to be the chairman on 1 March 2017 (i MHZE—ttF=HA—BTH
BEIERE
(i) Appointed on 22 December 2016 and resigned on (i) RZFTE—R"F+ZA=+=
1 March 2017 HEZF YR —tF
—A—HET
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Notes to Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (Nine
months ended 31 December 2016: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (Nine months ended 31 December 2016: two) directors,
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (Nine
months ended 31 December 2016: three) non-director,
highest paid employees for the year/period are as follows:

B RS AR Y A

31 December 2017
-t e S
EEREETHRAEME
(#4&)
REAR BEEZNEIRBWRE
TaMeLHE@EE_TE-—RF+=
A=+—HIEN@ER: &)-

TEBEFHNES

RER IERESFMEEREMA
(BE-ZFT-—R"Ft-HA=1+—HL
NER MBEE RENMEHF
TBEN LXK - RFERNHA -
EHp=2BE2_T-R"F+-A=
T—BHIEEAEAR:=R) &S FH MM
FEEWEENMEFBOT:

Year Nine months

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

BZE H=E

—ZE—+tF —E-RF

T=A=+—-8 +=-A=+—H

IEFE IENEA

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 ~ SZEEME W= 5,262 3,488
Discretionary performance-related ER R IR B 89 ) B 1B FE AL

bonuses 2,100 3,388

Pension scheme contributions RIK & B 5T 814 5k 138 104

7,500 6,980
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31 December 2017

—F—

9.

10.

156

+E+=ZR=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) 9. E&EB&&HFMES (&)
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose B & v F T 51 48 Bl ) £ = 7 B 3F
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: EENEBAZEDT:
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Bz HE
—E—tF —E-REF
+=A=+-8 +-A=+-~
LEFE IENEA
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T — 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L&
1,500,0007% JT 1 —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t &
2,500,0007% 7T — 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 T2
3,000,000/ 7T 1 —
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 T &
4,000,0007% 7T 1 1
3 3
INCOME TAX 10. P&

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the BVI. Hong Kong profits tax has
been provided at the rate of 16.5% (Nine months ended
31 December 2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year/period. Bisu
Yunbo, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in the PRC,
is subject to a preferential corporate income tax (“CIT”) rate
of 15% (Nine months ended 31 December 2016: 15%).

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
Y A% R M &

31 December 2017

BE - ek e BRI

10. FiB#H (&)

Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE HZE
—ZE—+tF A S
+—A=+—8 +=—A=+—H
IEFE IENEAR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current charge for the year/period FEHMENEEE A
Hong Kong profits tax EENEB 12 -
PRC CIT PRELRMAEN 31,434 43,810
Deferred (note 27) IR AE (BT 5E27) 733 (9,179)
Total tax charge for the year/period FE/HEAHMEL HESE 32,179 34,631
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31 December 2017
—E—+t&+=-A=+—8H

10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FR& %L (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before IAARRBI R EKRE M ERRME
tax at the statutory/applicable rates for the jurisdictions in MR AR AT/ EAMRERTE
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are B9 B % Al s M) 3 AR A B TE B S B2 A
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as ERBEXFENTER 2 HERN
follows: ™
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Bz HE
—E—tF —E-REF
+=—A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
LEFE IENEA
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FAT
Profit before tax B % A1 A 69,892 124,783
At the statutory/applicable rates of BARRE#ERZEE
different jurisdictions BAMERTE 30,336 46,311
Withholding tax on the distributable 7~ 5 & & B8 fff & A &) 7] 5
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiary B F| & &9 78 0 & 10,000 3,349
Lower tax rate enacted by local HHE B F R EE R
authority (20,967) (28,906)
Income not subject to tax HA R H WA (2,505) (23)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 15,512 11,432
Tax losses not recognised I A SR 9 A 18 & 18 6 2,468
Tax losses utilised from previous periods & 1 Ef sl &) F 71 18 &5 18 (203) —
Tax charge at the Group’s effective BRAEBERBERAE
tax rate HMIERAX 32,179 34,631
11. DIVIDEND 1. RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any EETEBHUAFEIR N ] K E
final dividend in respect of the year (Nine months ended R (EzEz—E—RNE+_A=+—
31 December 2016: Nil). i AEA - &) -
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12.

Notes to Financial Statements

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year/period attributable to
owners of the parent of HK$37,713,000 (Nine months ended
31 December 2016: HK$90,152,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
reporting period.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year/period attributable to the
owners of the parent, adjusted to reflect the interest on the
convertible bonds. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year/period, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on:

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
=X S BRI

12. BRABEEARLEESRER

BEREAENTIBEZ AR HEE AR
1 5/ H N 3% F1)37,713,0005% 7T (B
B T oo _ H = Ol
H 190,152,000/ 7T) KR E B B 3%
TEBRZMEFHEE -

BREERNDERSRAREAA
BAEFE/ BRRNGE  YERBE
ARBRA B BESMNE - BRFE
ZEBEMEFOBRSERELRA
FMEtERERNE MADETE
BB BEAEBRNEFGET)
BRRREREET ARTEXE
BIABREECEBRAE BN -

BRERNREBERNNFEER:

Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BE HZE
—E—+tF —E—RF
+=—BA=+—H +=-—H=+—H
IEFEE 1ELE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Earnings 2 |
Profit attributable to owners of the BRETEEREARBTK
parent, used in basic earnings per (SUNCIE PPN X gl
share calculation 37,713 90,152
Interest on convertible bonds AIMERES M E 27,847 19,502
Profit attributable to owners of the HBRAREESNER &
parent before interest on convertible A # A A A5 & F
bonds 65,560 109,654
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31 December 2017

—E—+t&+=-A=+—8H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are

12. BRAIEBARLEEBRER
(%)
BREAFBERFNNTEER:

based on:
Number of shares
IR &
Year Nine months
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE HE
—E—tF —E-RF
t=A=t—-8 +-A=+—H
LEFE IENEA
Shares i)
Weighted average number of ordinary FARFEFREREF Z
shares in issue during the year/period 4 /B AE 31T & B
used in the basic earnings per share hn#E 39 2
calculation 200,000,000 200,000,000
Effect of dilution — weighted average #EFZ - L@k
number of ordinary shares: hntE T8
Share options 8 IR 30,877 6,139
Convertible bonds Al 2 I (& 5 195,000,000 195,000,000
Weighted average number of ordinary RBRESKRESEET 2
shares in issue during the year/period &/ HiAE# 1T L@
used in diluted earnings per share INHE 19 2
calculation 395,030,877 395,006,139
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Notes to Financial Statements
Y A% R M &

31 December 2017
=X S BRI

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% -#BERKE

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and  and office Motor Construction
improvements  equipment  equipment  vehicles in progress Total
B BEs
HERE HBERRE BERBLARE AE ERIR @ 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TERT TER
Year ended BE_Z-t&
31 December 2017 +=-A=+-H
tEE
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF
1 January 2017: +ZA=+—-8k
“Z—+F-A-R:
Cost B 7K 428 48,004 2,999 1,314 1,404 54,149
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (120) (6,584) (955)  (1,227) - (8,886)
Net carrying amount BEFE 308 41,420 2,044 87 1,404 45,263
At 1 January 2017, net of RZZE—t5—-A-R1"
accumulated depreciation MK EFME 308 41,420 2,044 87 1,404 45,263
Additions nE — 120 40 26 1,946 2,132
Transfer [ — 530 1,157 - (1,687) -
Depreciation provided during the year 4 R47 & & & (86) (5,052) (576) (28) — (5,742)
Exchange realignment EXAE = 2,865 11 = 187 3,163
At 31 December 2017, net of RZE—+F
accumulated depreciation +ZA=+—-8"
MGRHTE 222 39,883 2,776 85 1,850 44,816
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+=-A=+-8:
Cost A 428 52,053 4,337 1,340 1,850 60,008
Accumulated depreciation 2iinE (206) (12,170) (1,561) (1,255) — (15,192)
Net carrying amount REFE 222 39,883 2,776 85 1,850 44,816
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ot 35 R MY =

31 December 2017
“E—+H%+-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

13. % - #ERHEE)

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Leasehold and and office Motor  Construction
improvement  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
A BEE
HENE BERRE ERBLRE AE ERIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TER FTET TEXT TER TEx TER
Nine months ended BE-Z-"E1+=A
31 December 2016 =+-HLEAMEA
At 1 April 2016: RZE—R"EWA—R:
Cost A 428 49,933 1,450 1,433 — 53244
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (56) (2,690) (744) (1,427) - (4,917)
Net carrying amount REFE 372 47,243 706 6 — 48,327
At 1 April 2016, net of accumulated RZT—REMA—H
depreciation NHRAEME 372 47,243 706 6 — 48327
Additions wE — 1,587 1,644 97 1,470 4,798
Disposal & — (105) — - — (105)
Depreciation provided BRETERE
during the period (64) (4,124) (215) (16) — (4,419
Exchange realignment RS — (3,181) (91) — (66) (3,338)
At 31 December 2016, RZZ—RF
net of accumulated depreciation ZA=+—-8"
Mk 2T E 308 41,420 2,044 87 1,404 45263
At 31 December 2016: RZZ—X
+ZRA=+-8
Cost A 428 48,004 2,999 1314 1,404 54,149
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (120) (6,584) (955) (1,227) - (8,886)
Net carrying amount REFE 308 41,420 2,044 87 1,404 45,263
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A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&+-A=+-H

14. GOODWILL 14. HE
2017 2016
—Z—tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Cost and net carrying amount: BN K BR TS E -

At 1 January/1 April w—A—H/MA—H 463,257 490,948
Exchange realignment PE A 3B 35,086 (27,691)
At 31 December R+—HA=+—H 498,343 463,257

Goodwill acquired through a business combination is
allocated to the cash-generating unit of the Automotive
Engines Business (the “Automotive Engines CGU") for
impairment testing.

Impairment test of goodwill

The recoverable amount of the Automotive Engines CGU was
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections of financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by management. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections was 24.48% (2016: 21.26%).
Management has determined the sales growth rate with
reference to the sales volume stipulated in the Automotive
Engine Sales Framework Agreements and Supplemental
Agreements (as defined in note 15). The cash flow projections
of the Automotive Engines CGU beyond the five-year period
of financial budgets are extrapolated using a growth rate
of 2.5% (2016: 3.0%), which did not exceed the long term
average growth rate of the industry. The discount rate used
is before tax and reflects specific risks relating to the unit.

MRETRENANS  BBEHA
FRBEBOBEERIEZ TEED
BMEBReELBEUL(TEHPH
REeELEEM] -

BEZRERNR

ABERBEIRSELBEN 2O
CHENFRAKEEBHERERSF
HNBREERNREREEANGTE
MERBEAEEMET - RER
ETERFT{EAMNEIREA24.48% (=
T—RNF2126%)° EEEERE
BB EEERGERE T
F(EERMEISMEIAMEEE
THERER - AFHERVKBESE
AERHRBEELENNESR
EFBBEAH2.5% (ZZF—7NF :3.0%)
BEREE  ZLXTEBRITE
RFHERER - IEAMBRER
ARBMAIRRBREBEBECHETER

G o
A
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B A& R M &

31 December 2017
—E2—t+tHF+=-A=+—8H

14.

164

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment test of goodwill (Continued)
Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the Automotive Engines CGU for 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2016. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Sales growth rates — The sales growth rates on product
types of the Group are estimated with reference to the sales
volume stipulated in the Automotive Engine Sales Framework
Agreements and Supplemental Agreements (as defined in
note 15).

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the Automotive Engines CGU.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A

14.

B2 (&)

BmEZRERR (&)
AEZE—tF+A=1+T—HBEZ
T-ARF+ZA=+—HBARBEEHHK
REEABEMNEREERFERT
B  TXHAEEEELE SR
EERAAETEHERENAKAR
BHEEFEME:

HEERF — ARBESEREEN
HERRXDAAEEHHIHEE
PR Yk Kb FE ek (E 3= KM RE15) P
RIAMIHE R EMETMAET -

BEEEE — P (B AR R A B BLA
RRBRABAEEDRASELE
fir 40 45 52 LI o



15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to Financial Statements
Y A% R M &

31 December 2017
SE S e SE R R

15. B EE

Customer
contracts
BEEEHN
HK$'000
FHE T
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tHF+ZA=+—HLFE
Net carrying amount: FREFE -
At 1 January 2017 R-_E—+F—H—H 569,171
Amortisation provided during the year FAEEEBHEE T
(note 7) (61,754)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 38 B 48,813
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+—H 556,230
At 31 December 2017: RZFE—+tF+-A=+—8:
Cost X < 706,393
Accumulated amortisation ZEr# (150,163)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 556,230
Nine months ended 31 December 2016 BE-ZE—ARE+=ZA=+—HILAEA
Net carrying amount: BREFE:
At 1 April 2016 R-ZE—AFEMA—H 687,523
Amortisation provided during the period i E B Ea s (HHE7)

(note 7) (83,551)
Exchange realignment PE 38 %= (34,801)
At 31 December 2016 RZFE—RFE+A=+—H 569,171

At 31 December 2016: RZE—-—RFT+ZA=+—8:
Cost X A 656,660
Accumulated amortisation RET (87,489)
Net carrying amount REFE 569,171
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31 December 2017
—E—+t&+=-A=+—8H

15.

16.

166

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Customer contracts represent certain automotive engine
sales framework agreements (the “Automotive Engine Sales
Framework Agreements”) entered into by the Automotive
Engines Group (as defined in note 16) in 2015 and pursuant
to which the related customers agreed to procure pre-
agreed quantities of engines from the Automotive Engines
Group from 2016 to 2020. In February 2018, the Automotive
Engines Group entered into certain supplemental Automotive
Engine Sales Framework Agreements (the “Supplemental
Agreements”) with the related customers, pursuant to which
the customer contract period was extended to 2022, and the
pre-agreed quantities of engines were adjusted based on the
customers’ latest production needs. The customer contracts
are amortised to profit or loss under the unit of production
method over the relevant contract period.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

15.

16.

mEEE(E)

BEEFANERAEEYRER(TEE
AN —_E—AEETNET
MEEYRIEEERBE()REE
BMIHEERBRE]D - Bt AR
FREE-ZE—R"FE_ZT_TFHR
AMERHREERBLANOTHE
MK - N-_T—NFE_-F - RE
BYPREECHBERPI LA T
BRABEYHRIEESERBE(HE
FEmEl) B BREFANHEER
BRI F  UREBREP&MAE
ERARCAOTEIEREE - &
FAEHOREBENHEREEES
fABHEERE -

RAAREEBERRAIRZEH
BE

Contingent

consideration

— profit

guarantee

HARKE —

iz Al 4R &

HK$’'000

THER

At 1 April 2016 RZE—R"FHEA—H 9,636

Change in fair value NAEEE (6,725)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 W-_ZT—XF+-_A=+—HK

—E—+tF—H—H 2911

Change in fair value NAEEE (2,911)

At 31 December 2017
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16. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (the “Engines
SPA") entered into by the Group and Power Expert Global
Limited (“Power Expert”) for the acquisition of Well Surplus
Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Automotive
Engines Group”) in October 2015 (the “Engines Acquisition”)
and the third supplemental sale and purchase agreement
(the “3rd Engines SPA") in December 2017, Power Expert has
warranted and guaranteed to the Group that the audited
consolidated profit after tax of the Automotive Engines
Group (excluding any fair value adjustments arising from
purchase price allocation upon the completion of the Engines
Acquisition by the Group) as prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs, for the two years ended 28 February 2017 and 2018
shall not be less than the aggregate sum of HK$170,000,000
(the “1st Guaranteed Profit”) and HK$230,000,000 (the “2nd
Guaranteed Profit”) (i.e. in aggregate HK$400,000,000) (the
“Total Guaranteed Profit”).

In the event that the Total Guaranteed Profit has not been
achieved, Power Expert shall compensate the Group. Details
of the calculation of the compensation are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 December 2017 and the
Company’s circular dated 20 March 2018.

16.

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&+-A=+-H

BRAREZERERIEZEH
BE(&)
BREXAEBEEDGREERRER A A
(I3 88 3® K1) Bt Y2 & Well Surplus
Enterprises Limited X B R A ([/7
BEPREBR DR =T —RHF T A
RAIVHEEGR((EBREERHD
([ZHEKBEBDARR_ZE—LF+
TR E=RAEERE(E
=R BEEHRE] DEERKAR
SEAERRE  ABEEHEEER
BEEMBHREERHNBZE_T
—+tFRZTE-NFHAZ+N\BL
M B FE R EZEERTE R (D
BIERNEEREE R ETKEAEE
BESEREMEENTERNAALBERHE)
1% 5 B T~ 2 7 & #£170,000,0007% 7T
(I%—HifR&& % A 1) & 230,000,000
BLT(E _BHRE&RMNDEENR
R & & F 1) (BD 42 400,000,000
TT) ©

fief R BE 22 B AR IR FE S A - TOBEIR IR
ARAAEBEELEE AHEAER
ELENFRHIRNARAAHA
TE—F+-A=+—HHRER
ARRIEMA T N\F=ZA=TH
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31 December 2017

—F—

16.

168

tHF+=-A=+—H

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company
determined that the fair value of the profit guarantee was
HK$ Nil as the Total Guaranteed Profit has already been met
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

As at 31
guarantee was HK$2,911,000, which was determined by
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an independent
professional valuer, based on the probabilistic flow method in
which the cash flows for each year represent the difference
between the guaranteed profit and the projected net profit.
The directors of the Company estimated the projected net
profits of the Automotive Engines Group under two different
scenarios with respective scenario probabilities. The fair
value of the profit guarantee was the probability-weighted
average of the present values of the shortfalls between the
guaranteed profits and the projected net profits under the
two scenarios. A discount rate of 17.09% has been used
to calculate the present value of cash flows of the profit
guarantee.

December 2016, the fair value of the profit

Below is a summary of a significant unobservable input to
the valuation of the contingent consideration together with
a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2016:

16.

BEARBEEBRERIEZSRA
EE(E)
RZE—tF+H=1T—H ' &RQ
AESHERBREBN ZANEAR
ZEL AR BRERZFNER
MEHREER -

R-EBE—RE+-A=+—8 &7
REH N 0 E A2,911,00008 7T 0 11k
THBYEEGBEMBKTEERF
HERERAGBEMERRT EAE
E HPABFHNHEeRERERE
A BETEF E N R A ERE -
RAARESHAELRHRERT
PR E S [R]E 5 T 1% A8 B IS R B B R
ZIEFRFFE - RBFMRENAR
B =R Fm N EAEE R T/
HmAFRE BN TR CHENY
LN T E o B3R E17.09% 2 A
T E BN REFRSRECHE -

TYAER—_E—RF+_A=+—H
AERARBHEERNEE R
R ABERTEHXE DT 2

=52
= -

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input value to the input
RESZE EEFTEHEEGAE AAEHAAEZHRE

31 December 2016
—F-~"¥+t=-A=t+-H

Discounted financial Probabilistic flow

Discount rate

instrument in respect of method 17.09%
the profit guarantee
BHNRBNEMR M IE BEGFE 863 %17.09%

5% increase/decrease in
discount rate would result
in decrease in fair value by
HK$138,000/increase in fair
value by HK$151,000

BERE AT B5% 5 F 5
A s {8 4138,000% 7T
A ftEE HN151,000% 7T
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18.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR Y A

31 December 2017
SE S e SE R R

INVENTORIES 17. 78
2017 2016
=T tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#& T FHET
Raw materials JR# 26,441 48,734
Finished goods 2K m 2,406 1,501
Goods in transit B EY 33,929 —
62,776 50,235
CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION AND OTHER 18. #i#& - BF R EME YN
CONTRACTS
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#& T FE T
Gross amount due from customers for EWREZFEH AL TEX
contract work 1858 66,530 27,120
Contract costs incurred plus recognised © ZE 4 A KK A INES
profits less recognised losses to date B2 #E R m MA 2 7 3R
B8 3,078,827 2,788,865
Less: Progress billings o EERERIA (3,012,297) (2,761,745)
66,530 27,120
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—F—

19.

170

+E+=ZR=+—H

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Accounts and bills receivables represented receivables for
contract work and sale of automotive engines. The payment
terms of contract work receivables are stipulated in the
relevant contracts and the credit period is generally one
month. The payment terms for receivables arising from sales
of automotive engines are mainly on credit and the credit
period is generally three months. The payment terms of bills
receivable are stipulated in the relevant bills issued by bank
and their maturity periods normally range from 90 to 180
days. The carrying amounts of accounts and bills receivables
approximate to their fair values.

ERERKREREE
BUREREEREEEAGOIRER
HETBEBHEMNHERER - 54
TREREFNEARFEZREBE
HWHETH - MEEH—RAE—EA -
REHETE KA EKERTRD
NEFENEERE MEEH—
MAE=MA - BWREENN KK
RBITELENBEERBEANGA - H
FIEARE A — AR T F90E180H ° UK
EREEREENEEEEERAR
BRE -

2017 2016

—E—4F —E—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Accounts receivable JE U BR X 1,191,019 1,320,537
Bills receivable e U = % 2,113 72,060
1,193,132 1,392,597

As at 31 December 2017, retentions receivable included in
accounts receivable amounted to HK$175,761,000 (2016:
HK$155,700,000) and are repayable on terms ranging from
two to three years.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
accounts receivable relate to a few number of major
customers, there is concentration of credit risk and further
details are discussed in note 39 to the financial statements.

R REEERERA

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt &

#—%ft¢+—ﬂ:+fa'EW$

BB ) FE YR B8 & %3175,761,000
/%nxfz—w\iwsmqmm%ﬂﬁ
BN TME=MF -

ERXEABRRAEE 2 EIKRR
HOBEZTIREFPHEB WEA
EEETRR E-—THFBRYB
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31 December 2017

19. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

19.

BE - ek e BRI

F& U B

AR EREE(E)

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end RBEHR BRERKREZAH
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as 2RO T
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH&T
One to three months —Z={@A 1,039,876 1,320,103
Four to six months m = 7 E A 150,379 225
Over six months 7 AE A LA B 764 209
1,191,019 1,320,537
The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable that are not 37 £ (& %'JY%%% _”EEHTEE'NE
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as WRRFARE ST T
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Past due but not impaired: 360 AR 3 R A
One to three months past due BEA—Z=@A 154,384 5,324
Four to six months past due B HA Y = X fE A 236 225
Over six months past due B HA R e N E A 199 209
154,819 5,758
Neither past due nor impaired B £ %0 HA 75 2 U (B 1,036,200 1,314,779
1,191,019 1,320,537

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the bills
receivable, based on the issue date, aged from one to two

months.

RZEBE—+tF+_A=+—HBE=ZF
—ANE+-_A=+—H BUWEEHH
SEAHZERRNT—EMEA -
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—F—

19.

172

tHF+=-A=+—H

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired
relate to a few number of major customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors are of the opinion that no allowance for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

Accounts receivable that are neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

At 31 December 2017, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in PRC (the “Derecognised
Bills") to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the
accounts payable due to such suppliers with a carrying
amount in aggregate of RMB1,767,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,037,000,000). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity
of one to six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of
recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
"Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors,
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Bills and the associated accounts payable. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group's Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of
the Group's Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
are not significant. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the date
of transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were
recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both during the
year or cumulatively. The endorsement has been made evenly
throughout the year.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A

19. EWERAREWEE(E)

8 BB I SR (E Y B W BRI B
HAOBEZTEEPHEB RFA
AEERXHWRER T - RENE
K EFRA ZFHBREAR
REEBERF REBRERERLE
BEAEEG BNDARA/TZEKD
ER&EH AKBYENZFER
FrAT AR SRR -

EafrEREnRRERES
HBUEPHER WEOIHALER
Aok -

R-—ZT—+E+=-A=+—8 £&
EmEETHERESEANMBITE
MmETREUERB(ERIEERE
Bl - NEBEERNZEHERER
B A A R#1,767,000,0007T (8 & »
2,037,000,00078 7o) FETBR 3K B4
IEREERBEAR—ZXEA
WEH - REBEFEARANERIE
% MR IRITELD  BERIEER
EBRSEBEABRARNEEREY (18
EFSENH]) EERA AKEEHE
BEREZEBEARB AR KB -
Eit EERIIBRAERIEERE
BEREHEEMERLEIHERERME -
AEBRERIEBEREBRZIFEE
WEMATTERE BN &K AKR BRI
BRZEORIEREBEERUR
RERENEEREE - EFRAE
AEBRERIIBREEZFEE
HEHHAALBEYFEER - HEZ
T—+F+-_A=+—HIEFE XK
SEVTERRATARELRERRE
BEZHBAOECMKZELERE R
REESHERRFRERN - SEMR
REEPEHEREBERZ - BEER
FARAEFEDR -
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31 December 2017
SE S e SE R R

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. ENFE - e R HMBEWR
RECEIVABLES

2017 2016

—E—4tF —ZE-XEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Prepayments TEfT IR 990 997

Deposits and other receivables 1% & & Eth fE 45K 18,112 13,759

Due from related parties (note) JE L [ Bt 75 5k IE (BfY 53) — 1,429

19,102 16,185

Less: Non-current portion B JERNHA B o (566) —

Current portion Bl ER 26 5 18,536 16,185
Note: The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed Misr: BAEARBREEF 2EEE

terms of repayment. &l E 2 KA o

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. FEERES I ERE - Ll
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to HRESNEMEEDETHITER
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. B sk YRR o B IR
The carrying amounts of other receivables and deposits ket RHEEEQAAEBERSE -

approximate to their fair values.
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—F—

21.

174

+E+=ZR=+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. BEeRBEELEZEY
2017 2016
—E— —TE—XE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT F# T
Cash and bank balances Be& RIRITE S 68,623 24,899

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$40,492,000 (2016: HK$862,000). The RMB is not freely
under PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

convertible into other currencies, however,

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The cash and cash equivalents are deposited with banks
with high credit ratings and no recent history of default.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A

RBERR AEBUAAREHE
HIR & R IRITAE #R3E 40,492,000 7T
(ZZ—7%F :862,000/87T) - ARKE
THEERABAEMER - HERE
P EICHMNE B IR B (K TE ~ BIE
ENEEERTE) AEEEEEB
EEBETIEEXEHBNRITBEAR
MEBMABEMER -

RITREBRENRBARTERN X
EEMFHNERINANE - RFAR
SENAKReRTE RHEHF
TNHARNF—HE=ZEANTSE - I
1R &R B SRR R BRI B e
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Notes to Financial Statements

22. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end

B RS AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&+-A=+-H

22. BFERR

TIHRREZEHR S REHKRE

of each reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as AR 2 BRER DA
follows:

2017 2016
—Z—tHF —E-RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Current to three months PlEAZ= =1 A 663,081 927,251
Four to six months gz XE A 4,217 3,262
Over six months 8@ 7S @ A 2,379 1,235
669,677 931,748
At 31 December 2017, retentions payable included in RZE—+tF+A=+—H"

accounts payable amounted to HK$13,103,000 (2016:
HK$7,978,000) and are normally settled on terms ranging
from two to three years. The carrying amounts of accounts
payable approximate to their fair values.

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms ranging from 7 to 120 days. The payment
terms are stipulated in the relevant contracts.

EREXRFERENENRERIE
/13,103,000/8 Jt(= ;—/\E
7,978,000/ 7L) - —MNFME=4F
WNEHE BNEFOEDERER
AEHEE -

e BR K B RETFE

120HRNEE - G )Wﬁ%%é.\%’]
FRETHE
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—T—+t&+=ZHA=+—8H

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HhtERRKFEREAR

2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Other payables H b B~ 3 38,782 56,530
Accruals SR == 12,693 1,950
Due to a shareholder (note) FEft— & B R kA (B RE) 6,000 6,000
57,475 64,480

Note: The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed Met: ZERELRERRE 2ERER

terms of repayment. TE A RE o

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are expected to HihERNRREFHAE - LFEHAR
be settled within one year. The carrying amounts of other —FRNBE - Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ &i‘iﬁ =RE
payables and accruals approximate to their fair values. AMEEERAERNAERE
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SE S e SE R R

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 24. FHEBITR HMEERK
BORROWINGS
2017 2016
—E-tF —FNF
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
per annum Maturity ~ HK$'000 per annum Maturity ~ HK$'000
BHENR BNERNE
(%) BHA TET (%) 38R FHL
Current ik
Bank loans — unsecured FITEHR—EEA  HIBOR + 2.5% 2018 3,933 — — —
ERETR%E
£ 5+2.5%
Other loans — unsecured A ER — BER 5% - 12% 2018 42,500 12% 2017 20,000
46,433 20,000
Notes: B 2%
a)  The Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are a) AKEMBRITREMFGEERA
repayable within one year. R—FREE-
b) A corporate guarantee was given by the Company for the by ARAMR_ZT—-—tF+_A=
outstanding balance of bank loans of HK$3,933,000 as at +—HHAEBEERTERE
31 December 2017. 3,933,000 LR D ZEER o
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 25. AR ES
The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated E/\Zﬁ/\ﬁﬁi‘“ﬂﬁ/ﬁi%ﬁﬁmﬁ’]—ﬁﬁﬂxi
statement of financial position are bifurcated into two FoigstAgma AMEES - 55l
components for accounting purposes, namely the liability REBEHXDRERHSS M Z%‘E‘B
component and the equity component, and the movements in RmEBMANOEENT -

these components during the reporting period are as follows:

Liability Equity
component component Total
EfEHs Bz gt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET

At 1 April 2016 RZZE—RNENA—H 340,316 390,716 731,032

Interest expense (note 6) F B 2 (B 5E6) 19,502 — 19,502
At 31 December 2016 and R-ZZT—RF

1 January 2017 +=ZA=+—HK

—+tF—H—H 359,818 390,716 750,534

Interest expense (note 6) B 2 (Bt 51 6) 27,847 — 27,847
At 31 December 2017 R-ZTE—+F

+=-A=+—H 387,665 390,716 778,381
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Notes to Financial Statements

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The details of the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible bonds is as follows:

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
=X S BRI

25. AR IRE % (M|

ERRAREREATRRESASBH
BWE

HK$'000
F#& T
At 1 April 2016, 31 December 2016, 1 January RZTE—R"FEFWOA—B -
2017 and 31 December 2017 N R R Ty A S S H D
—E—+F—H—BXK
—E—+tF+=ZH=+—H 390,000

A reconciliation of the principal amount of the convertible

HEEUBBEKE - ATRBRES A

bonds to their fair value upon completion of the Engines CHEEAQNABEBZIHEAT:
Acquisition is as follows:
HK$'000
FET
Principal amount iNGR-C ] 390,000
Fair value adjustment NAERHE 336,698
Fair value NIE 726,698

On 4 February 2016, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$390,000,000 to Power Expert as part of the consideration
for the Engines Acquisition. The maturity date of the
convertible bonds is on the second anniversary of the date
of issuance (i.e. 4 February 2018). The convertible bonds bear
no interest on the principal amount. No security or guarantee
is granted in respect of the convertible bonds. The convertible
bonds can be converted into 195,000,000 ordinary shares
in the Company at the initial conversion price of HK$2.00
per conversion share (subject to adjustment pursuant to the
terms of the convertible bonds). The Company may at any
time before the maturity date by written notice redeem the
convertible bonds at 100% of the principal amount. Any
amount of the convertible bonds which is redeemed by
the Company will forthwith be cancelled. At 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016, no convertible bonds were
converted and the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible bonds was HK$390,000,000.

RZE—AFZAWNA  ARFIMADH
BEIR BREE 1T AN £ #4858 5390,000,000
BILIHTEARKRES  UIEAE
BRKEBH LY RE - IRKRESH
MBI ARTRAENE @RS
HEN-Z—N\E_-AMAE) - aJ#Ha K
BEEMASBITE - BERA
BREFBELEBSRER - J#RK
EHEAURNSBRBRESRBRRKR N
2008 T (B RETRRESF DK
AR K A N2 F)#9195,000,000
A& E AR o AN A A 5 B HE B Al RE B
FBREEMBNZAEEN100%E D
AR E S o ANA G AT HE R A 1E A
ARRESFS AW ESE - B
2 tH& A=+ —HAR=F+
NEF+_A=1+—8B BEJHRRKE
AR EB MARKESFHNRESR
N4 % 4390,000,00078 7T ©
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25.

26.

180

tF+=-A=+—H

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 25. AR ES (&)
In March 2018, the Company has executed the extension of NZZE—N\F=H  ARaHAT#KR
the maturity date of the convertible bonds for 2 years from BEHFZ PR _E-N\F_AMA
4 February 2018 to 4 February 2020 (the “CB Extension”). ERMEZ-_Z _FTF - AMHTA
Further details of the CB Extension are set out in the BmEREFER] FHEATBREKES
Company’s announcement dated 31 December 2017 and the R E-—TFBHNARAIEH
Company’s circular dated 20 March 2018. RIE—tLFT+A=+t—HHRSE
EARNBHBA—E-—NF=ZA=F
HEE K o
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the RZE—+FF+_A=+—HEZ=ZE
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of —RFTZA=T—B e HEHE
HK$390,000,000 were deposited with an escrow agent in 390,000,000/ 7T 2 A #2 I (& 25 1& DA
favour of the Company as security for the 1st Guaranteed RARAAXm ANFARERE - LAME
Profit and the 2nd Guaranteed Profit. The convertible RE-BRIBAMNEE ZIBREZ &
bonds in the principal amounts of HK$165,750,000 and FzER - MAEEHREERE
HK$224,250,000 shall be released to Power Expert if the 2 —+HERE-NF-_A=-+
audited consolidated profits after tax of the Automotive NBIEMEFE 2K EZEEHRB
Engines Group for the two years ended 28 February 2017 ‘Mo RBERLBIAESE —HR
and 2018 are equal to or more than the 1st Guaranteed Profit B R B ZIERF RN - BB
and the 2nd Guaranteed Profit, respectively, after the issue EHEELZEMERE  AeHE
of the auditors’ certificate for each period. #165,750,0007% T 5224,250,000/%8
XA BMBRELSESERTHER
B o
PROMISSORY NOTES 26. AR R
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
First Note FE-—FE 199,893 192,170
Second Note F_Eg 274,025 261,768
473,918 453,938
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26. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued)

On 4 February 2016, the Company issued two promissory
notes with face values of HK$174,250,000 (the “First Note")
and HK$235,750,000 (the *“Second Note”) in favour of
Power Expert as part of the consideration for the Engines
Acquisition. Both the First Note and Second Note carry
interest at a rate of 10% per annum. The outstanding
principal amounts plus any accrued interest will be repayable
on the maturity date falling on the second anniversary of
the date of the First Note and Second Note, i.e. 4 February
2018.

On 31 December 2017, the Company has extended the
maturity date of the First Note and Second Note for 2
years from 4 February 2018 to 4 February 2020 and the
interest rate was adjusted downwards from 10% to 8%
per annum, all accrued and outstanding interest shall be
repaid on the extended maturity date of 4 February 2020.
Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 31 December 2017 and the Company’s circular dated
20 March 2018.

The gain on modification of promissory notes amounted to
HK$15,160,000 was recognised as other income for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (Note 5).

The carrying amounts of the First Note and Second Note at
year end were computed by discounting the face values of
the notes by the effective interest rate and the outstanding
interest payable.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016,
the promissory notes with an aggregate face value of
HK$410,000,000 were deposited with an escrow agent in
favour of the Company as security for the 1st Guaranteed
Profit and the 2nd Guaranteed Profit. The promissory notes
in the face values of HK$174,250,000 and HK$235,750,000
shall be released to Power Expert if the audited consolidated
profits after tax of the Automotive Engines Group for the
two years ended 28 February 2017 and 2018 are equal to or
more than the 1st Guaranteed Profit and the 2nd Guaranteed
Profit, respectively, after the issue of the auditors’ certificate
for each period.

26.

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&F=ZA=H-8

AHEE(E)
RZZE—RE-_AWNH ' KQF MG
BEIRIR A 2 ARITRBL AR FiE
T8 4174,250,0008 T ([F—Z# |)
%235,750,0008 ([ = FE &) -
IERZEBRIKENTSRE - F
—EBRE_EEBHUZRFHNEIO%
R REEACHEERMTMWER
FEBENRE"ZEBRE_FZED
F_REEREIE-N\E_AN
HMEHAEE -

RZE—+F+-_A=+—H0 &2
AEREEBLF_ZEH IS
BRE-_Z—/\F-_ANHAEERER
—“T-TF_AWNMA - MEFNEREH
10%FAEEZE8% * FTAETRER
MAEENBBAR_TE-_TF - AN
AEERNBAEE - E—FFHB
HENARRAEA-_T—tFE+_A
—t+—HHRAERAQRFABHA-T
—NFE=ZAZ+H/BEK -

&2 5, =45 2 W 25 515,160,000
TRBEZE-Z—tF+-A=+—H
IHFERRBEMK A ES) -

E-EZBENE_EBRFROER
BEERBERM R & EREEENF
EHERNMERMRNE -

RZE—+tF+A=+—HBK=Z
—RNF+ZA=+—H LEHEZE
410,000,000/ T 2 7 X EHE E AR
NABRBAGTATERRE  UEA
FIEHRBHENRE ZIERE G
ZER - MABEHREREE_T
—tFERZE-NF-HA=ZF+NBL
MEFE 2 REZEERTE R
ARENRSKEBBE -BRE RN
REZIBERFZ R - BIRESHAREED
% B RM 3 AR 1& -+ T {E 3 174,250,000
7 7T % 235,750,000 7T 7 & 5 E #
1M TR IRIK ©
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27. DEFERRED TAX 27. EEERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year/ F/ARRNEERBEAENEFHBER
period are as follows: R
Depreciation Fair value

allowance  adjustments

in excess  arising from

Withholding of related acquisition of
tax  depreciation  subsidiaries Total

BBEAE U B Y B

EN  ARELN

BB FERBE QAAERE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TR
At 1 April 2016 RZE-R"FMA—-A — 11 103,128 103,139
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  FREBZEINK/(GTA)
profit or loss during the period  #JiE T &% 8 (B 510
(note 10) 3,349 4 (12,532) (9,179)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF
1 January 2017 +ZA=+-Bk
e s Rl = 3,349 15 90,596 93,960
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  FREBZEMB,/(GEA)
profit or loss during the year #O3E JE A% 78 (P 5E10)
(note 10) 10,000 (4) (9,263) 733
At 31 December 2017 il o3
+-A=+—H 13,349 1 81,333 94,693
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27. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group has tax losses arising
in Hong Kong of HK$23,783,000 (2016: HK$25,013,000).
Subject to the final assessment of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department,
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax
losses arising in PRC of HK$1,771,000 (2016: HK$1,748,000)
that will expire in five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be

these tax losses are available

utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding tax on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

Deferred tax has not been recognised for withholding taxes
that would be payable on certain unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding tax of one of the Group's
in PRC. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that the relevant subsidiary
will distribute these unremitted earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with the investment in a subsidiary in PRC for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
amounting to HK$281,030,000 (2016: HK$204,528,000) as
at 31 December 2017.

subsidiaries established

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

27.

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&F=ZA=H-8

IE 7E B 18 (4])

RIE—HF 308 =+ B>
AREBEEEFMELENTEEE
#323,783,000% JL(=Z & — N F:
25,013,000/ 7T) c R X F B B
BREREFTE  EEREESEN
AR BRI E BB AR KRR
FERBEF - AEBEEPEMHBIE
&5 18 51,771,0008 T (Z T — K F -
1,748,000 7T) - B E AFAEH -
HEBBARRKRERBEF o I
ERZEFERRAELEREEE
R BT AR LA ERF s A 7] A
LA SR TH 548 -

BEFESEMERE  RAREK
NN ECEARAIFRESES
IKE R B IR 0% BB - 2 2
KHRZEENF—A—HRBER I
ERAR-_ZE+F+_A=1+—H#E
EENEFR  BREEINFRESE
FTBal AR B B %Ki - B ATfE
REREBMHRE - §AEEmE -
BARERI0% - At - AEBEE
TREZERPBEKR LB R AR
R N\F-A—HRBRELAN A
DIRE R B BN TBEIH -

REBEFABEEZLH—HEHEBEAQF
METREH W EBMNTEMH
HHMARZERMNENRERET
M- EEZERE BENBARTK
AT BRI RDEZERE
Pz e RZE—+EF+ZA=+—
H #BRTEBARIREEHEEN
AEREERBEAELYREEZER
% /281,030,000 L (ZF — /< F ¢
204,528,000 7T °

AR B 1) B3R A B2 3 4 B 45 B

&R o
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31 December 2017

—F—

28.

29.

184
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SHARE CAPITAL 28. B
Shares % 4
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
Issued and fully paid: BEETRHE:
200,000,000 (2016: 200,000,000) 200,000,000/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZE—RF:
200,000,0004% )
SR EE0.01E T
T E R 2,000 2,000
Share options i IR R
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included RNATIERESEFETNE B R
in note 29 to the financial statements. =M EE29 o
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. BEBIRFEEE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 24 March 2016,
the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”). Unless otherwise
terminated or amended, the Scheme will remain in force for
10 years from the date of adoption.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include full-time or part-time employees,
including any executive directors of the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or
licensors, customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants)
of the Group or any person who, in the sole discretion of
the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group.
The Scheme became effective on 29 March 2016 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at the date when the
Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting, which is a total of 20,000,000 shares
available for issue under the Scheme. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive officer
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors and ends on a date which is not later than
10 years from the date of the offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but should not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of share options; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the shares of the Company as stated on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company.

29.

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&F=ZA=H-8

BRER S (&)
BEIREBZAEBRE ZRITEE
BEESHEABRSEN(EHETHE
B)ADRR R ZTEIERRRIREE
REAREEHEZEBZEEITRMD
BE10% 2 88 - AIARIEETEIAT T
2174 3£20,000,000% & 10 - BEA
BER2HEENTRIMEA[BHEARIR
B EETIBRONRSH
BEATHSBBARANEMAERERE
BTGB 1% - LiE—FREBE
ZPREE AR B R R AE AR R
ANEE#E -

BREANETARRZES  THRE
HAETEZMAEREAMEEHEA
MAEEKEBIIFERITESHE -
gE AN - R 1218 A B R
FARARABIZ EFBZWE LB IEHIT
EETNAMBEECHEAmMBLA
DA IEDZETIRDE0.1%
SBEGEARABRORTLEASRZ
BRI BBEEE BT 2 BREY
BAEBREERRERNS EELHE -

BRHBEREZENTNRENBHRE
A2ARA RAERAXNEZERES
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31 December 2017
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. BREE(E)
Shares options do not confer rights on the holders to ERETEETHAEARINEZAR
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. ERERRREGLRE -
The following share options were outstanding under the FOBAN ZETEBETRITENR
Scheme during the year/period: IR
2017 2016
“E-tf ZT-REF
Exercise Number of Exercise  Number of
price options price options
TEE BREHE TEE BREZE
HK$'000 HK$'000
per share ‘000 per share '000
TER TET
=30 T4 gk T
At beginning of year/period F/ 89 8.12 2,000 — —
Granted during the year/period F/HBART — — 8.12 2,000
Lapsed during the year/period F/BHARE (8.12) (2,000) — —
At end of year/period F/HK — — 8.12 2,000
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RZE—RF+ZA=+—HBXRTE
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: BRERNITEERITEENT
2016
—E-XREF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE" TEHS
‘000 HK$
per share
aav) BT
B
2,000 8.12 22 December 2016 to

21 December 2018
—TE-XFEt+-A=-+=-RZE
—E-N\FE+=—HA=+—H

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment & BRETEEASERIARE
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes TTRARE R E AR LLE S E
in the Company’s share capital. R -

186  Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3R &l 5 &£ B E R A R A A



Notes to Financial Statements

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the fair value of the share options
granted during the period was HK$6,395,000 (HK$3.20
each), of which the Group recognised a share option expense
of HK$6,395,000.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the nine months ended 31 December 2016 was estimated as
at the date of grant using a binomial pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted and the following table lists the major inputs
used:

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&+-A=+-H

9. B8 (&)

R IEVE — /NG Hy IHe B | e
NS HARENERENAAER
6,395,000/ 7T (& %3.2078 L)' H
A 7R & B 3R BB AR R B 526,395,000
B TT ©

BE-_T-—RF+t-A=1+—HLAN
ARG EREEBRENLD R
BEERTRAHER -_BEATERR
EITHEE  RAEZEBRER DN
R BT TREIEANEE
LN ¢/

2016

—E—-XF

Dividend yield (%) B B = (%) 0.00

Expected volatility (%) 78 BA 0K &) K (%) 73.00

Risk-free interest rate (%) i 3 B R & (%) 1.12
Exit rates of the grantees of the options granted 4R 1% 7% 5T &1 1% T B8 IR 4 A0 7R 1%

under the Scheme (%) A BB B R (%) 0.00

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the TBHRSEEERE LIRS R (KK

historical volatility, which is based on the Company’s historical
share price, is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome. The exit rates of the
grantees of the options granted under the Scheme were
determined based on the historical data.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

RN HYEE S B AR (B AR B A ) B

REARRBEREZ  BEXT—E
2ERGR  -REZABETER
BEARANBEBRERDIREEL &K

REE -

AAEQARER S KREEMETER
REH) E AR B o
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—F—

29.

30.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Company had 2,000,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
2,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$20,000 and share premium of
HK$16,220,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company did not have share options outstanding under the
Scheme.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the reporting period are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a) Statutory surplus reserve
Transfers from retained profits to the statutory surplus
reserve were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.

For the entities concerned, the statutory surplus reserve
can be used to cover previous years' losses, if any, and
may be converted into capital in proportion to equity
holders’ existing equity holdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of
their registered capital.

Share option reserve

It represents the fair value of share options vested
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy of share-based payments in note
2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the
related share options are exercised, or transferred to
retained profits should the related share options lapse
or be forfeited.
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  31.

Notes to Financial Statements
Bt A& R M A

OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

(a)

During the year, the Group has endorsed bills receivable
to settle the accounts payable in an aggregate of
RMB1,767,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,037,000,000).

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

(b)

Interest-
bearing bank

31 December 2017

T t&F=ZA=H-8

RERETREBERME

FEHFRERS

FA-AEEBEBEEREK
ZE-NLNEELEAAR
¥1,767,000,0007t (8 & »
2,037,000,0007% JT) B FE 1 BR

Eon
A °

REMEXBHNRERLY

and other  Convertible Promissory
borrowings bonds notes
FERITR
Hithig & TwBRES ARELRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHE T FHET
At 1 January 2017 RZTE—+LF
—H—H 20,000 359,818 453,938
Changes from financing cash BER & REEH
flows 26,433 — —
Accrued interest expense FEEFI B — 27,847 35,140
Gain on modification of BREAHLEERZ
promissory notes W 5 — — (15,160)
At 31 December 2017 R_TE—tF
+=ZA=+—H 46,433 387,665 473,918
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32. JOINT OPERATION 2. HEIRE
Particulars of the Group's joint operation as at 31 December BRAAREER=_T—tF+HA=+
2017 are as follows: —HOHRKEFBDOT:
Form of Place of Percentage of attributable Principal
Name of joint operation business structure  operation interest of the Group activities
HREEER EERBRELA RERH FREEREEEEIE  EERE
2017 2016
—E-tF ZB-AE
% %
(note (a)) (note (b))
(M &) (B & (b))
EXCEL-LANON Joint Venture Body unincorporated Hong Kong 51 —  Construction
it — RHAELE FELENEE  BR BEIR

190

(a

Under the joint venture agreement, the joint operators
have contractually agreed sharing of control over the
relevant activities of this body unincorporated, hence this
body unincorporated is jointly controlled by the Group and
the other joint operator. Furthermore, the joint venture
agreement specifies that the Group and other party to the
joint arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations to
the liabilities relating to the joint arrangement in accordance
with the attributable interest of the Group as disclosed above
and the interest attributable to the other joint operator
respectively, therefore the body unincorporated is classified
as a joint operation.

The joint operation is principally engaged in construction work
to carry out the provision of barrier-free access facilities for
highway structures in Hong Kong.
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 December 2017, the guarantees given by the
Group to certain banks and a licensed corporation
in respect of performance bonds in favour of certain
contract customers amounted to HK$23,105,000 (2016:
HK$24,446,000).

In the ordinary course of the Group’s construction
business, the Group has been subject to a number of
claims due to personal injuries suffered by employees
of the Group or the Group’s subcontractors in accidents
arising out of and in the course of their employment.
The directors are of the opinion that such claims are
well covered by insurance and would not result in any
material adverse impact on the financial position or
results and operations of the Group.

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

The Group leases certain of its equipment under an operating
lease arrangement. The lease for equipment is negotiated for
a term of thirty months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under a non-cancellable operating
lease falling due as follows:

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
=X S BRI

33. HREE

(a)

el o i W SRE B, s
H AEBERGETETEOR
PrzRARBMASE TIRTR
—FREECERERENERR
23,105,000 L (ZF — < F:
24,446,000 7T) °

EAEEREXRBNATEBE
FoARERARE D BEHN
BEAREXEHEBLEEI
BEHRAGEEMRAEEIED
ETRE -EFRA AAR
FERNREROAREE T
BAREENMBMRR  FER
REBBRIEREATNZE -

34, KEHEZRH
EHEHAA
AEBERBEEHEXHFLEES
THRE KHBROAREHEHEFH

/ \% _

THEA -

RBEYR - AEERE T A HHE
KEMEN T BB E RIS KR
KEBEESEBWT

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Within one year —F R — 4,900
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31 December 2017
—E—+t&+=-A=+—8H

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(Continued)
As lessee
The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

34.

REHEZHE)

EREBE A
AEBRBLKEHERFHERAES
THAEME - EHBEROMEMR
EFMNTF—E=F-

R¥I|EHR - AEERE T A HH
REHERTI A HEMR
RExEHETEBENT:

2017 2016
—E—+tF VNS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Within one year —F R 5,262 5,420
In the second to fifth years, inclusive & —ZFHF
(BEEREMSF) 296 1,347
5,558 6,767
35. COMMITMENTS 35. HEiE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B bl B 51 34 P # AC & 1H B AR E S
in note 34 above, the Group had the following capital REBAREAREATERASE :
commitments at the end of the reporting period:
2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Contracted, but not provided for MR NEREN
plant and machinery BEETH B R B A 700 1,208
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with related parties during
the reporting period:

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&+-A=+-H

36. BBE RS

(a)

B 1 7 B 75 3R 2k HoAth B8 9 5 At
MRS RERIN  REEBR®R
FHAGEBE S ET TR
R

Year Nine months

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Bz HE

—E—+tF —E-RF

t=A=+t—-8 +=-A=+—H

LtEE IENEA

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FET
Transactions with related companies 2 ZA&RQ &) — & & =42
controlled by a director of the WA ARIETR S

Company:
Corporate service fee paid ENTERSEE 1,028 744
Financial advisory fee paid BN EERE 250 560

The transactions were conducted on terms and
conditions mutually agreed between the
parties.

relevant

Outstanding balances with related parties

Balances with related parties are included in notes 20
and 23 to the financial statements.

(0 Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

Further details of the compensation of key management
personnel of the Group are included in notes 8 and 9
to the financial statements.
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37.

38.

194
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Except for the profit guarantee which is classified as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss and
measured at fair value, the financial assets and liabilities
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016 were loans and receivables and financial liabilities at
amortised cost, respectively.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
bank balances, accounts and bills receivables, accounts
payable, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals and current portion of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and convertible bonds
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the director
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The finance department reports directly to the director and
the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the liability portion of convertible bonds
and promissory notes have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for convertible bonds and promissory notes as at
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was assessed to
be insignificant.
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38.

39.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2016

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&+-A=+-H
ERMIAZARBERAAERE
(&)
AREEBR

TEMLAEESRTIA Y ARE
SEEM:
BAREHEZEE:

RZEFE—NF+-_H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices

R

VBB RA

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total

RGBT % EATHE EAFTHE
Fr R B 1% BARE BARE @t

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(B—4) (B=4) (B=H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Financial asset at fair value through AR EEBERE

profit or loss Pz e REE — — 2,911 2,911

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments include accounts
and bills receivables, other receivables, prepayments and
deposits, accounts and other payables, cash and cash
equivalents, promissory notes and convertible bonds. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes to the financial statements.

39.

R-ZE—+F+_A=1+—HE=-Z
—RNEF+_A=t+—H AEETE
TRZEAAETENEREE -

BE-F-t4+t-A=t+-RL%
EeRAERSMAREBRE
“EAAEHEZMLEEE
G EEE TR [ Bt

o

)

BHERBEEEERBE

AEENTIESRMTABRRERKE
AR EWEE  EbEER - BN
RELRRE  EBAHRREEMEN
K REMRSEEY  ALEER
AMBES ZEEeMITANFE
RUBRERAEBREBMERE -
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31 December 2017

—F—

39.

196

tHF+=-A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

The Group’s ordinary activities expose it to various financial
risks, including foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The risks associated with financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are described
below. Management monitors closely the Group’s exposures
to financial risks to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation of
fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments which
arose from changes in exchange rates.

The Group's civil engineering and construction business is
located in Hong Kong and is transacted and settled in HK$
while the Group’s Automotive Engines CGU is located in
PRC and is transacted and settled in RMB. Accordingly, the
directors considered that the Group’s foreign currency risk is
insignificant.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
balances, accounts and bills receivables and other receivables.
The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure at the end of
the reporting period in the event of other parties failing
to perform their obligations is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Bisu Technology Group International Limited Lt 3 ®l 5 & B E R E R A A
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39.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Management monitors the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing basis. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers of automotive engines
who wish to trade on credit terms and subject to credit
certification procedures. The Group’s accounts receivable
from contract work represent interim payments or retentions
certified by the customers under terms as stipulated in the
contracts and the Group does not hold any collateral over
these receivables. As the Group’s customers in respect of
contract work primarily consist of government departments
and developers or owners with strong financial backgrounds,
management considers that the
receivables from contract work is not significant.

risk of irrecoverable

At 31 December 2017, the Group had concentrations
of credit risk as 38% (2016: 43%) of the total accounts
receivable were due from the Group’s largest external
customer and 82% (2016: 95%) of the total accounts
receivable were due from the Group’'s five largest external
customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts and bills receivables
and other receivables are disclosed in notes 19 and 20,
respectively, to the financial statements.

39.

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
T t&+-A=+-H

BHEREEBRERBRGE)

FE R (R
EEEERENTIYERSEBA
MEZEREREN - AEEHNK
RREREREENEENAE
BRREPETESE Y AETE
ERBREF AKENANTIRRE
WERRIERBES QNG AKRR M
MPRANRAEEPEENRER
8 AR B F RS
EEMERR  ARAKRENELD
TEREPETEZRBMAABIIANRE S
EENHERSET BEERR
AR @ & #) T2 8 W R a0 & f
* o

RZE—+F+-A=+—8 K&
EFateTEERRBRETHNIER - &
W BR R ARZTEHAI38% (Z T — /N F
B%)RERNEBHN R KRINBES -
MmEM AR R ABREFRHS2% (ZF—<
F:95%)BIZRBEANE B/ A KINED
BFE o

B B AN 5 R M AR AR I R U R AR A
K E UK ATE LN EER R
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. In addition, banking
facilities have been put in place for contingency purposes.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
rates as at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date that the Group could be required to repay:

39. MBEBEEESERBEK(EA)

RBEEER

AEBENBRRERAENERAKRA
HRBHESHFK NEREGERE
MRTHBELRATESREREN
RHBMERE KmmEERHR
FEHORDESHFR - I KK
BeRhRITEER UWETKZ

%F'% o

TRHFIINAEENERABR RS
HERSNOFGEOH  EHRIE
BHNAMBARTRE (BREAOR
R (MEF BN ER)RBENRHKE D
5 SRR B I RS E Y RSN R0 R AR
SEFRAGENRFARARFL:

Within
1 year or Between Between
on demand 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Total
L EY
EERER -Z2°F —EhE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
As at 31 December 2017 R-E-+F
+=ZHA=+-AH
Accounts payable R 659,516 4,159 6,002 669,677
Accruals of costs for contract work TE#E A #) T2 5 A& 63,867 — — 63,867
Other payables (note 23) Hfth & 15 5% (P 55 23) 44,782 — — 44,782
Interest-bearing bank and other & B BT R E M E
borrowings 46,433 = = 46,433
Convertible bonds ik & 5 390,000 — — 390,000
Promissory notes AR EE — — 557,600 557,600
1,204,598 4159 563,602 1,772,359
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  39.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

A 75 AR Y A

31 December 2017
=X S BRI

BHEREEBRERBRGE)

REE SRR (&)

Within
1 year or Between Between
on demand 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Total
—ERN%E
[EEXRER —ZZF —ZhRE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2016 R-B-X<E
+=ZA=+-H
Accounts payable FERER K 924,484 5,910 1,354 931,748
Accruals of costs for contract work TBIRA#I T A 91,009 — — 91,009
Other payables (note 23) H i 70 (BT 523) 62,530 — — 62,530
Interest-bearing other borrowings & 8 H £ 5 21,474 — — 21,474
Convertible bonds R R & % — 390,000 — 390,000
Promissory notes EEER — 492,000 — 492,000
1,099,497 887,910 1,354 1,988,761
Capital management EsEH

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
policy is to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The directors review the capital structure on a periodical
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital
and will balance the Group’s overall capital structure through
new share issues as well as raising new debts or repayment
of existing debts.

$El§u¢¢£¥ﬁﬁzﬁﬁ’]$%§$¥7ﬂ%
MRAEEHEFELE AKEB
18 (L 18 5 B AR 48 18 SRSk A 2 AH R
EEHE A -

EEeTHRIEARE - EAIL
Iﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁi?ﬁﬁ’ﬂ-ﬁlﬁ EEERE
TRAREZEECHBENRR
3 5 535 8 ¥ AL AT R R E A E
ERBEBRIFENEENERE
RIRHE -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. i EMEEEERKE(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued) ExEEA)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net AEBEERAERELEREZEER M
cash and bank balances divided by the total capital. Net debts BREEXTIRB & RIRITERFE
are calculated as the total of interest-bearing bank and other BRIABARBEHE - BB FREAIK
borrowings, liability component of the convertible bonds AERITEEMENR  IBRKRES
and promissory notes less cash and cash equivalents. Total NEBEROREARLEENETRER
capital refers to equity attributable to owners of the parent. ehREFEYTHE  BEARERTEIE
The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December BRAABIEAAREER R _FT—
2016 was as follows: tFEF+ A=+ —BEZE—RF+

“A=t—BMERLLEAT

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FHEIT
Interest-bearing bank and other FTERIT R HMERK
borrowings (note 24) (B 52 24) 46,433 20,000
Liability component of A IR 1 25 B
the convertible bonds (note 25) B & (M :E25) 387,665 359,818
Promissory notes (note 26) 55 =98 (B 55 26) 473,918 453,938
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BB RIREEEY (68,623) (24,899)
Net debts FRE 839,393 808,857
Equity attributable to owners of BRAIHEEB A
the parent JE A 7= 702,614 551,372
Gearing ratio (%) B2 & (%) 119% 147%
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

40.

B RS AR Y A

31 December 2017
=X S BRI

KTz AR R =

BERARANBERR M BN
RZERWMT :

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
T=HA=+—-8 +-A=+-—FH
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FH& T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Vs HEREE 245 347
Investments in subsidiaries BB AT ZHRE = —
Total non-current assets IEREBEELE 245 347
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries JFE Ui B BB A B 5K 1B 1,188,761 1,186,466
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - EHE2 Kk
other receivables H b ' R 2,376 2,218
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEYD 38 1,534
Total current assets MENEERE 1,191,175 1,190,218
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—F—

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

202

+E+=ZR=+—H

COMPANY (Continued)

31 December

40. A28z 8RR & (&)

31 December

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
t=A=+—-8 +T-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHB T FH& T
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables and accruals EmpEMARLTERER 14,928 10,488
Interest-bearing other borrowings TR EMER 42,500 20,000
Convertible bonds Al i I (& %5 387,665 —
Total current liabilities mEaEEE 445,093 30,488
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 746,082 1,159,730
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHLEBER
LIABILITIES REBAEE 746,327 1,160,077
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Convertible bonds Al # % (& 5 — 359,818
Promissory notes ZEGTIES: 473,918 453,938
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEAE 2 2
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELSE 473,920 813,758
Net assets BEFE 272,407 346,319
EQUITY EE
Share capital fig A< 2,000 2,000
Equity component of convertible bonds A] # f% (& % 2 # %5 3 o
(note) (Bt 7%) 390,716 390,716
Reserves (note) it 8 (BT 5E) (120,309) (46,397)
Total equity 18R 272,407 346,319
Wong Hin Shek Xing Bin
T EE FBE
Director Director
EE EE
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=X S BRI

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. AT Z BB AR R T (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: B &
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARZFEHEMNT
Equity
component
of Share
Share convertible option Accumulated
premium bonds reserve losses Total
EE:-3:3
%2 B

RGEE RERD e RAER st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET THET TET TET THET

At 1 April 2016 RZZE—X~EMNA—H 45,486 390,716 — (34,289) 401,913
Total comprehensive loss for HAN2EREBERRE

the period — — — (63,989) (63,989)
Equity-settled share option BafERRELTH

arrangement (note 29) (Bt 5529) — — 6,395 — 6,395
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE—A"F+ZA=1+—H

1 January 2017 k=Z—+%—F—H 45,486 390,716 6,395 (98,278) 344,319
Total comprehensive loss for the year A2 HE 1B A% — — - (73,912) (73,912)
Transfer of share option reserve upon 1B A% 1 % 2% %

the lapse of share options ERERERE — — (6,395) 6,395 —
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+-A=+—H 45,486 390,716 — (165,795) 270,407

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  41. #t A& B K®E

The financial statements were approved and authorised for B GRERN—_E— ) \E=A-+—H
issue by the board of directors on 21 March 2018. EEEoH ERERET
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Five-Year Financial Summary
REMBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEEBERBETBFE HIM 2 %45 -
Group for the last five financial years/period, as extracted from the EENBEME(HiraAEE D T8

Group's published financial statements, is set out below. BEmKR)EHINWAT -
RESULTS E§
Year Nine months Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
—E—t§ —E-RF —E-RF —T-H%F —ZT—NOF
+=-B=+-H +-A=+—-H =ZA=+—-H =ZA=+—-H =ZA=+-H
LEE EAEA +5E +HEE HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FHT FHT FET
Revenue 'ON 2,026,599 2,145,926 609,335 702,856 1,477,332
Profit/(loss) before tax BB AERF (B 18) 69,892 124,783 (32,349) 19,052 36,034
Income tax expense s (32,179) (34,631) (774) (3,178) (7,638)

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive 4/ Hi 3 A,/

income/(loss) (BB)REARAN

for the year/period (BE)BE 37,713 90,152 (33,123) 15,874 28,396

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY EE BERAEARER
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
R-ZB-—t& PZZT—RNF WNZE—RF PRZZT—RF R-T—NOF
=A=+-H +=-—A=+—-RH =ZR=+—-HB =ZRA=+—-HB =ZA=t+-—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FET FAET FAET
Total assets BEE 2,509,552 2,594,815 1,702,936 376,040 460,726
Total liabilities BaE (1,806,938) (2,043,443) (1,169,985) (149,913) (250,473)
Total equity BRER 702,614 551,372 532,951 226,127 210,253

204  Bisu Technology Group International Limited b 33 %l 5 & B B f2 A R 2 A
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